Part D301648X012 July 2015

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow (for FloBoss[™] 107 Flow Managers) User Manual



Remote Automation Solutions

Revision Tracking Sheet

July 2015

This manual may be revised periodically to incorporate new or updated information. The revision date of each page appears at the bottom of the page opposite the page number. A change in revision date to any page also changes the date of the manual that appears on the front cover. Listed below is the revision date of each page (if applicable):

Page	Revision
All pages	July-15
All pages	May-11
Initial release	Sep-09

Page

Contents

napter	1 – Introduction	1
1.1	Scope and Organization	1
1.2	Product Overview	2
1.3	Program Requirements	3
napter	2 – Installation	5
2.1	Installing the License Key	5
2.2	Downloading the Program	7
napter	3 – Configuration	11
3.1	Liquid Preferences Screen	
3.2	Liquid Products Screen	
0.2	3.2.1 Liquid Products – Product Definition Tab	
	322 Liquid Products – Advanced Tab	18
33	Liquid Meters Screen	20
0.0	3.3.1 Liquid Meters – General Tab	
	3.3.2 Liquid Meters – Inputs Tab	23
	3.3.3 Liquid Meters – Advanced Tab	
	3.3.4 Liquid Meters – Alarms Tab	
	3.3.5 Liquid Meters – Flow Rates Tab	
	3.3.6 Liquid Meters – Flow Totalizers Tab	
	3.3.7 Liquid Meters – Densities Tab	
	3.3.8 Liquid Meters – Dav/Month Totalizers Tab	41
3.4	Liquid Density Interfaces Screen	44
	3.4.1 Liquid Density Interfaces – General Tab	46
	3.4.2 Liquid Density Interfaces – Inputs Tab	
	3.4.3 Liquid Density Interfaces – Micro Motion Constants Tab	50
	3.4.4 Liquid Density Interfaces – UGC Constants Tab	52
	3.4.5 Liquid Density Interfaces – Alarms Tab	54
3.5	Saving the Configuration	56
- Refei	ence	59
11	Density Panges for Liquid Product Types	60
4.1 10	Liquid Allocation History	00 רא
4/		

4.3	Point Type 22: Liquid Preference Parameters	.65
4.4	Point Type 23: Liquid Product Parameters	.68
4.5	Point Type 25: Liquid Meter Parameters	.70
4.6	Point Type 26: Density Interface Parameters	.97

[This page is intentionally left blank.]

Chapter 1 – Introduction

This chapter describes the structure of this manual and presents an overview of the Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow for the FloBoss[™] 107 (FB107).

1.1 Scope and Organization

This document is the user manual for the Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow (1LK-7) for use in the FB107, and the user manual for the Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow (QER 10Q006) for use in the FB107 with Measurement Canada firmware.

Notes:

- The standard version of this program (1LK-7) **only** works with the standard version of FB107 firmware.
- The Measurement Canada version of this program (QER 10Q006)
 only works with the Measurement Canada version of FB107 firmware.

This manual describes how to download and configure this program (referred to as the "Liquid Allocation program" or "the program" throughout the rest of this manual).

You access and configure this program using ROCLINK[™] 800 Configuration Software (version 1.80 or greater) loaded on a personal computer (PC) running Windows[®] 8 or Windows 7 (32 or 64-bit).

The sections in this manual provide information in a sequence appropriate for first-time users. Once you become familiar with the procedures and the software running in a FB107, the manual becomes a reference tool.

This manual has the following major sections:

- Chapter 1 Introduction
- Chapter 2 Installation
- Chapter 3 Configuration
- Chapter 4 Reference

This manual assumes that you are familiar with the FB107 and its configuration. For more information, refer to the following manuals:

- FloBoss 107 Flow Manager Instruction Manual (Form A6206)
- ROCLINK 800 Configuration Software User Manual (for FB107) (Form A6217)

1.2 Product Overview

The Liquid Allocation program allows a FB107 to interface with up to two meter runs passing liquid hydrocarbon fluids or water. These meter runs are in addition to the meter runs provided by the FB107 Application Firmware. The flowing densities (and optionally, base densities) of the liquid hydrocarbon or water are calculated based on temperatures and pressures using one or more of the following standards:

- API Standard 2540 [Chapter 11.1] (1980) Volume X, Reaffirmed, October 1993.
- The Institute of Petroleum, Petroleum Measurement Paper No. 3, October, 1988.
- API Chapter 11.2.1 Compressibility Factors for Hydrocarbons: 0 90 Degrees API Gravity Range (1st Edition, August 1984), Reaffirmed, May 1996.
- API Chapter 11.2.2 Compressibility Factors for Hydrocarbons: 0.350 0.637 Relative Density (60°F/60°F) and -50°F to 140°F Metering Temperature (2nd Edition, October 1986).
- API Chapter 11.2.1M Compressibility Factors for Hydrocarbons: 638 – 1074 Kilograms per Cubic Metre Range (1st Edition, June, 1984), Reaffirmed, May 1996.
- API Chapter 11.2.2M Compressibility Factors for Hydrocarbons: 350 – 637 Kilograms per Cubic Metre Density (15°C) and -46°C to 60°C Metering Temperature (1st Edition, October 1986), Reaffirmed, March, 1997.
- API MPS (Manual of Petroleum Measurement Standards) Chapter 11

 Physical Properties Data Section 1, Temperature and Pressure Volume Correction Factors for Generalized Crude Oil, Refined Products, and Lubricating Oils, May 2004.
- Gas Processors Association (GPA) TP-27, Temperature Correction for the Volume of NGL and LPG, Section 5, January, 2005.
- API MPS (Manual of Petroleum Measurement Standards) Chapter 11

 Physical Properties Data, Section 4 Properties of Reference Materials, Part 1 – Density of Water and Water Volumetric Correction Factors for Water Calibration of Volumetric Provers, First Edition, December 2003.

Meter types can be either differential or linear. The calculation standard used for differential meters is ISO5167. The calculation used for linear meters is based on AGA Report No. 11. Volume and mass flow rates and totals are calculated and stored for both meter types. The program uses user-defined point types for storing the calculated flow rates and accumulations. The program's user-defined point types are also the location where the configuration parameters reside.

The Liquid Allocation program also supports up to two liquid density interface points. The liquid density interface points allow for manual density inputs; density inputs from densitometers; frequency inputs from a Micro Motion (or Solartron) 7830/40 or 7835/45/46/47; and UGC densitometers. The density value determined from the density input is referred to as the observed density. The base density of the liquid hydrocarbon passing through a meter can be specified to be calculated from the observed density.

1.3 Program Requirements

You download the Liquid Allocation program to—and then run it from the Flash and RAM memory on the FB107 with firmware version 1.30 (or greater). Because the program is larger than 64K, it occupies two user C program numbers (1 & 2). Download and configure the program using ROCLINK 800 Configuration software version 1.84 (or greater).

The downloadable program is:

File Name	Target Unit/ Version	User Defined Points (UDP)	Flash Used (in bytes)	DRAM Used (in bytes)	ROCLINK 800 Version	Display Number
LiquidAlloc_1.bin (1LK-7)	FB107 1.30	22, 23, 25, 26	94,560	32,768	1.84	23, 24, 26, 27
LiquidAlloc_1.bin (QER 10Q006)	FB107 with MC Firmware 1.00	22, 23, 25, 26	94,560	32,768	1.84	23, 24, 26, 27

Note: You must connect a PC to the FloBoss's LOI port **before** starting the download.

For information on viewing the memory allocation of user programs, refer to the *ROCLINK 800 Configuration Software User Manual (for FB107)* (Form A6217).

[This page is intentionally left blank.]

Chapter 2 – Installation

This section provides instructions for installing the Liquid Allocation program into the FB107. Read *Section 1.3* of this manual for program requirements.

Note: The program and license key can be installed in any order. The manual shows the installation of the license key first.

2.1 Installing the License Key

A license key (1LK-7) is required to use the Liquid Allocation program. To install a USB key-based license on the FB107:

- **1.** Insert the USB license key in a USB port on your PC.
- Select Utilities > License Key Administrator > Transfer Between Device and Key from the ROCLINK 800 menu bar. The Transfer Licenses Between a Device and a Key screen displays.

Licenses on DEVICE Application Name Vendor Name App Code Version Quantity License Source Expiration Time Created Licenses on KEY Connect to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity	Transfer Licenses Be	tween a DEVICE and	a KEY					?
Application Name Vendor Name App Code Version Quantity License Source Expiration Time Created Licenses on KEY Connect to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity	Licenses on DEVICE							
Connect to KEY Move to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity	Application Name	Vendor Name App C	ode Version	Quantity Lic	ense Source	Expiration		Time Created
Connect to KEY Move to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity								
Connect to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity								
Licenses on KEY Move to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1								
Licenses on KEY Connect to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1								
Connect to KEY Move to KEY Add License Remove Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1	-		_	_		_	_	
Time Created Application Name Vendor ID Vendor Name App Code Version Expiration Quantity 3 05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1		Connect to KEY		Move to KE	<u> </u>		Add Licens	e Remove
3 Op/2002 11:11:06 AM Liquid Alloc 31529 RAS 0 1.0.0 No Expiration 1 License Key Event Log Serial Number : [123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity		Application Name	Vendor ID V	/endor Name	App Code V	/ersion Fy	piration	Quantitu
License Key Event Log Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity	3 05/28/2009 11:11:06	AM Liquid Alloc	31529	RAS	0 1	.0.0 No	Expiration	1
License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789 Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity								
License Key Event Log Serial Number : 123456789								
License Key Event Log Serial Number: 123456789			_					
Time Stamp Action User ID Vendor ID Application Name Previous Quantity New Quantity	License Key Event Log					Serial Num	ber: 1234567	39
	Time Stamp	Action User ID	/endor ID App	lication Name	Previous Qu	uantity New Q	uantity	
Close								Close

Figure 1. Transfer Licenses Between a Device and a Key

- **Note:** This screen has three sections. The upper portion (Licenses on Device) shows any software licenses installed on the FB107. The middle portion (Licenses on Key) shows software licenses on the license key. The lower portion of the screen (License Key Event Log) provides a rolling log of the last eight events related to this license key.
- **3.** Select the key-based license you want to transfer to the FB107 (Liquid Alloc, as shown in *Figure 1*).
- **4.** Click **Move to Device**. ROCLINK moves one instance of the license from the key to the FB107 and updates the screen.

Transfer Licenses Be	etween a DEVIC	E and a K	EY				? 🗵
Licenses on DEVICE							
Application Name	Vendor Name	App Code	Version	Quantity	License Source	Expiration	Time Created
1 Liquid Alloc	RAS	0	1.00.0	1	Key	No Expiration	05/28/2009 11:11:06 AM
	Connect to KEY]		Move to D	EVICE	Add Licen	se Remove
	Application N	lame Ve	endor ID Ve	endor Name	App Codel Ve	rsion Expiration	Quantity
This croated	hppioddorr		100110110	indor Ham			Quarkity
				_			
License Key Event Log						Serial Number : 1234567	789
Time Stamp	Action Us	er ID Vend	or ID Applie	cation Nam	e Previous Qua	antity New Quantity	
1 08/25/2009 08:33:36	REMOVE LO	I 3152	9 Liquio	Alloc		1 0	
							Close

Figure 2. License Installed

- **Note:** An FB107 can hold up to six different licenses, although you can install only one instance of each license on the FB107. When you click **Move to Device**, ROCLINK 800 moves only one instance of the license onto the FB107 and automatically decreases the license quantity on the USB key by one.
- **5.** Verify the license name displays in the Licenses on Device section of the screen. Proceed to *Section 2.2* to download the user program.

2.2 Downloading the Program

This section provides instructions for installing the user program into FloBoss memory.

Note: Connect a PC to the FloBoss's LOI port **before** starting the download.

To download the user program:

- **1.** Start and logon to ROCLINK 800.
- 2. Select **ROC** > **Direct Connect** to connect to the FloBoss unit.
- Select Utilities > User Program Administrator from the ROCLINK menu bar. The User Program Administrator screen displays (see *Figure 3*):

User Program Administrator		? 🛛
User Programs Installed in Device		
1 - No Program 2 - No Program 3 - No Program 4 - No Program 5 - No Program 6 - No Program Clear Start	Name : No Program Version : Created : CRC : 0x0 Entry Pt : Displays : Status : Empty	Library Version : DRAM Used : 0 FLASH Used : 0
Download User Program File		Browse
Name:		Download & Start Download
Created : CRC :		
Size :		
		Dipdate Close

Figure 3. User Program Administrator

- **4.** Click **Browse** in the Download User Program File frame. The Select User Program File screen displays (see *Figure 4*).
- **5.** Select the path and user program file to download from the CD-ROM. (Program files are typically located in the Program Files folder on the CD-ROM). As *Figure 4* shows, the screen lists all valid user program files with the .BIN extension:

Select User Pro	gram File				? 🗙
Look <u>i</u> n:	Program Files		•	← 🗈 💣 🎟-	
My Recent Documents	ELiquidAlloc_1.bi				
My Documents					
My Computer	File <u>n</u> ame:	LiquidAlloc_1.bin		•	<u>O</u> pen
	Files of type:	User Programs (*.bin)		•	Cancel

Figure 4. Select User Program File

6. Click **Open** to select the program file. The User Program Administrator screen displays. As shown in *Figure 5*, note that the Download User Program File frame identifies the selected program and that the **Download & Start** button is active:

User Program Administrator		? 🛛
User Programs Installed in Device		
1 - No Program 2 - No Program 3 - No Program 4 - No Program 5 - No Program 6 - No Program Clear Start	Name : No Program Version : Created : CRC : 0x0 Entry Pt : Displays : Status : Empty	Library Version : DRAM Used : 0 FLASH Used : 0
Download User Program File E:\Program Files\LiquidAlloc_1.bi Name : Liquid Alloc Version : Rev. 1.10 Evented : 8731/2009 3:57:17 PM CRC : 0xC2C7 Size : 94560	n	Browse) Download & Start Download
<u></u>		🖉 Update 🛛 Close

Figure 5. User Program Administrator

7. Click **Download & Start** to begin loading the selected program. The following message displays:



Figure 6. Confirm Download

- **Note:** For the FB107, ROCLINK 800 assigns program positions based on memory allocations. For this reason, the Liquid Alloc program automatically installs as program 1. Because the program is larger than 64K, it occupies two user C program numbers (1 & 2).
- **8.** Click **Yes** to begin the download. During the download, the program performs a warm start, creates an event in the event log, and—when the download completes—displays the following message:



Figure 7. ROCLINK 800 Download Confirmation

- **9.** Click **OK**. The User Program Administrator screen displays (see *Figure 8*). Note that:
 - The User Programs Installed in Device frame identifies the loaded program.
 - The Status field indicates that the program is running.

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

User Program Administrator		? 🔀
User Programs Installed in Device 1 - Liquid Alloc 2 - No Program 3 - No Program 4 - No Program 5 - No Program 6 - No Program Clear Start Stop	Name : Liquid Alloc Version : Rev. 1.10 Created : 08/31/2009 15:57:17 CRC : 0xC2C7 Entry Pt : 0x5A0000 Displays : 23, 24, 26, 27 Status : Running	Library Version : Rev. 2 DRAM Used : 32768 FLASH Used : 94560
Download User Program File E:\Program Files\LiquidAlloc_1.bi Name : Liquid Alloc Version : Rev. 1.10 Created : 8/31/2009 3:57:17 PM CRC : 0xC2C7 Size : 94560	n Dow	Browse
)		Close

Figure 8. User Program Administrator

10. Click **Close** and proceed to *Chapter 3* to configure the program.

Chapter 3 – Configuration

After you download and start the Liquid Allocation program, you configure the program and view calculation results using ROCLINK 800 software. To do this you use four program-specific screens (Liquid Preferences, Liquid Products, Liquid Meters, and Liquid Density Interfaces):

- Use the Liquid Preferences screen to set the units of the inputs and calculated results values.
- Use the Liquid Products screen to configure up to two liquid hydrocarbon or water products which can be selected as the fluid passing through a liquid meter run.
- Use the Liquid Meters screen to configure and view the results for up to two liquid meter runs through which one of the liquid products defined by the Liquid Products screen flows. One of the configuration items is to specify if the base density for the product passing through the meter is to be calculated from a Liquid Density Interface point, or to use the user-specified base density for the liquid product.
- Use the Liquid Density Interface screen to configure and view the observed densities for up to two liquid density interface points.



Figure 9. ROCLINK 800

3.1 Liquid Preferences Screen

Once you have successfully loaded the Liquid Allocation program into the FloBoss, you can access the Liquid Preferences screen and configure the units for the inputs and calculated results for the program.

To access this screen:

- 1. Click User Program > Liquid Alloc from the ROCLINK configuration tree.
- 2. Double-click **Display #23**, **Liquid Preferences**. The Liquid Preferences screen displays:

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Pr	Preferences]	
Eile Edit View ROC Confi	nfigure <u>M</u> eter <u>U</u> tilities <u>T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	_ 8 ×
	3 🐽 🚡 Q C Q I M III 🐝 M III 😽 🛠 🔿 🗳 🖾 🛃 IV 🛃 ? N?	
	Program Status	_
Liquid Units Selections	Program Dimuing	_
	riogram nummig	
- Temperature Unite	Volume Unite Pase and Elouing Dansity Unite	
G Dea E	Contract of the second of	
	C Mof	
C Degl	C Km3 C API Gravitu	
	C Gal	
Pressure Units	C ft3	
(• Psi	C m3 Observed Density Units	
O Bar	C Liter IS Kg/m3	
C Ka/cm2	- Mase Unite C 1 h // 2	
	G Lb C Lb/bl	
- Units for Drifice, Meters-		
- Diff Press Units	C Ton C Belative Densitu	
InH20	C Tonne C API Gravitu	
🔍 kPa	C MIb	
C mBar	Dev Dela Tina Hala	
· mmH2U	Flow hate time Units	
Diameter Units	C Per day	
Inch		
C millimeter	C Per second	
Viscosity Units		
Lb/ft-sec	Elevation Units	
C Co	(Feet	
	C Meter	
	Print Save As Auto Scan Deducte Close	. Apply
		· •
		P-46 AM
	UN-LIN	0.40 AM

Figure 10. Liquid Preferences Screen

3. Review the values in the following fields:

Field	Description
Program Status	This read-only field shows the current status for the Liquid Allocation program. Possible statuses are Program Running and License Not Found (you must install a Liquid Alloc license key to use the program).
Temperature Units	Sets the units of all temperature inputs. Valid selections are Deg F and Deg C.
Pressure Units	Sets the units of all pressure inputs. Valid selections are Psi, kPa, Bar, and Kg/cm2.

Field	Description	
Units for Orifice Meters	The following units are applicable if the meter type of a liquid meter is specified as orifice, in which case ISO- 5167-2003 is used as the flow calculation standard.	
	Diff Press Units	Sets the units of the differential flow input. Valid selections are InH2O, kPa, mBar, and mmH2O. (Units of InH2O and mmH2O are based on a water temperature of 60 Deg F).
	Diameter Units	Sets the units for the meter and pipe orifice diameters. Valid selections are Inch and millimeter.
	Viscosity Units	Sets the units for the viscosity of the fluid. Valid selections are Lb/ft-sec and Cp.
Volume Units	Sets the units for all volume flow rates and total values. Valid selections are Bbl, Mcf, Km3, Gal, ft3, m3, and Liter.	
Mass Units	Sets the units for all mass flow rates and totals. Valid selections are Lb, Kg, Ton, Tonne, and Mlb.	
Flow Rate Time Units	Sets the time units for all volume and mass flow rates. Valid selections are Per day, Per hour, Per minute, Per second.	
Elevation Units	Sets the units for the elevation used to determine the atmospheric pressure when the latter is specified to be calculated. Valid selections are Feet and Meters.	
Base and Flowing Density Units	Sets the units for the base and flowing densities. Valid selections are Kg/m3, Relative Density, and API Gravity.	
Observed Density Units	Sets the units for density interface p selections are Kg, Relative Density,	the density determined by the point (observed density). Valid /m3, g/cm3, Lb/ft3, Lb/bbl, Lb/gal, and API Gravity.

4. Click **Apply** to save your changes, and proceed to *Section 3.2* to configure the Liquid Products.

3.2 Liquid Products Screen

Use this screen to specify up to two liquid products that could flow through the liquid meters.

To access this screen:

- 1. Click User Program > Liquid Products from the ROCLINK configuration tree.
- 2. Double-click **Display #24**, **Liquid Products**.
- **3.** Double-click **#1**, **Product #1**. The following screen displays:

🔄 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Products - FB107]	
Ele Edit View ROC Configure Meter Utilities Tools Window Help	_ 8 ×
D 😂 🖬 🐰 📾 🛍 🤮 💷 🦆 🔍 🔍 州 🐜 🕪 🖤 🎜 冬 🕑 🖺 🚰 🖓 ? 🐶	
Point Number: 1 - Product #1 Product Tag: Product #1	_
Product Definition Advanced	
Liquid Type API Table Base Density	_
© Crude Dil C 1980 999.016 Kg/m3	
C Gasoline	
C Jet Fuel	
C Water	
Print Save As Auto Scan	
	<u></u>
ON-LINE	11:21 AM

Figure 11. Liquid Products Screen

Note: Two fields at the top of the screen (Point Number and Product Tag) appear on both tabs.

4. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Description
Point Number	Selects the liquid product to configure. Click \checkmark to display all of the products. Clicking a different liquid product causes the screen to display the values for that product.
Product Tag	Sets a unique identifier for the selected liquid product.

5. Click **Apply** to save any changes, and proceed to *Section 3.2.1* to configure the Values tab.

3.2.1 Liquid Products – Product Definition Tab

Use this tab (which displays when you access the Liquid Products screen) to specify the liquid type, API table, and the base density of a liquid product.

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Products - FB107]	
Eile Edit View ROC Configure Meter Utilities Tools Window Help	- 8 ×
D 🖆 🖬 X 🖻 🛍 🗇 🕮 🧏 🔍 🍳 VI 👭 🐜 VA 🕪 🗗 🗳 🔗 🖺 😫 🖳 💕 1	? N ?
Point Number: 1 - Product #1	<u> </u>
Product Definition Advanced	
Liquid Type API Table Base Density	
© Crude Oil C 1980 999.016 Kg/m3	
C Gasoline © 2004	
C .let Fuel	
C Evel Di	
C Lube Di	
C Special Application	
C Link Huterator	
s water	
	_
Print Save As AutoScan 🕼 Update Close 🕴	Apply
	, _
ON-LINE	11:55 AM



Figure 12(a). Liquid Products, Product Definition tab (Liquid Type is Not Light Hydrocarbon or Water)





Figure 12(c). Liquid Products, Product Definition tab (Liquid Type is Water)

Field	Description	
Liquid Type	Sets the type of fluid associated with this product number. Valid selections are Crude Oil, Gasoline, Jet Fuel, Fuel Oil, Lube Oil, Special Application, Light Hydrocarbon, and Water.	
	Note: See <i>Section 4.1</i> for density ranges and additional information about the liquid types.	
API Table	If the Liquid Type is anything other than light hydrocarbon or water (Crude Oil, Gasoline, Jet Fuel, Fuel Oil, Lube Oil, or Special Application), select the appropriate the API table to use for calculations. Valid selections are 1980 and 2004. If the Liquid Type is light hydrocarbon , this field shows that the GPA TP-27 table is being used for calculations.	
	If the Liquid Type is water , this field shows that the API Table 11.4.1 (2003) is being used for calculations.	
Base Density	Sets the density of the liquid product at the base temperature and base (or equilibrium) pressure. The units are as specified by the base and flowing density units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
	Note: This value is only used if the base density option on the Inputs tab of the Liquid Meters screen is set to use the base density of the product.	

1. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

2. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.2.2* to configure the Advanced tab.

3.2.2 Liquid Products – Advanced Tab

Use this tab to specify additional information, as appropriate for the liquid products.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Advanced** tab on the Liquid Products screen. One of the following four screens displays:



Figure 13(a). Liquid Products, Advanced tab (All Liquid Types and API Table 1980 or GPA TP-27, except Special Application and Water)



Figure 13(c). Liquid Products, Advanced tab (All Liquid Types and API Table 2004 and water, except Special Application)

Figure 13(b). Liquid Products, Advanced tab (Liquid Type of Special Application and API Table 1980)



Figure13(d) Liquid Products, Advanced tab (Liquid Type of Special Application and API Table 2004)

Field	Description	
User Defined Alpha	Sets the coefficient of thermal expansion (alpha) to use when determining the flowing density from the base density. The units are 10 ³ times the volume fraction per temperature unit; the temperature units being specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
	Note: This field only displays if the liquid type is special application.	
Compressibility Options	Sets the option for correcting for the pressure effect when determining the flowing density from the base density. Valid selections are Auto Select Compressibility Table, API Chapter 11.2.1, API Chapter 11.2.2, and User Defined Compressibility.	
	Note: This field only displays when the API Table is 1980 or the liquid product is light hydrocarbon.	
User Defined F	Sets the compressibility (F) for the liquid product. If the base temperature is 60 Deg F, the units are 10 ⁵ times the volume fraction per pressure unit. If the base temperature is 15, 20, or 30 Deg C, the units are 10 ⁶ times the volume fraction per pressure unit. The pressure units are specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
	Note : This field only displays when the compressibility option is specified as user defined compressibility.	

2. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes.

4. Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.3* to configure the liquid meters and view the calculated values.

3.3 Liquid Meters Screen

Use this screen to configure up to two liquid meter runs and observe the calculated values.

To access this screen:

- 1. Click User Program > Liquid Alloc from the ROCLINK configuration tree.
- 2. Double-click **Display #26, Liquid Meters**. The Liquid Meters screen displays:

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]		
Eile Edit View ROC Configure Meter Utilities Tools	Window Help	_ 8 ×
🗅 😅 🖬 X 🖻 🖻 🕭 와 🍹 Q' Q' 州 1	H 🐜 M. H. 🛱 🌂 🕑 🗳 🚰 🖳 🚮 ? 🕅	
Point Number : 1 - Lig Mtr #1 💌	Tag: Lig Mtr #1	-
,		
General Inputs Advanced Alarms Flow Rates F	Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers	
Mater Davaistien		
Meter Description.		
Product Selection: Product 1		
Meter Type Base Temperature	1	
Linear G 60 Deg F		
C Orifice C 15 Deg C		
C 30 Deg C		
Pass Marray Pressure		
0.0 PSIG		
Astivo Alarma: Mana		
Active Aldinis. None		
	Print Save As Auto Scan Dupdate Close	Apply
•		
	ON-LINE	10:37 AM

Figure 14. Liquid Meters Screen

Note:	Two fields at the to	p of the screen	(Point Number and	Tag) appear on all tabs.
-------	----------------------	-----------------	-------------------	--------------------------

3.	Review-	-and change as necess	ary—the v	values in t	the foll	owing fields:
			_			<i>i</i>)

Field	Description
Point Number	Selects the liquid meter run to configure. Click ▼ to display all of the liquid meters runs. Clicking a different meter run causes the screen to display the values for that meter run.
Тад	Sets a unique identifier for the selected liquid meter.

4. Click **Apply** to save any changes, and proceed to *Section 3.3.1* to configure the General tab.

3.3.1 Liquid Meters – General Tab

Use this tab (which appears when you access the Liquid Meters screen) to specify a liquid meter's description, liquid product passing through it, meter type, base temperature, and base (or vapor) pressure. Any active alarms are also shown on this tab.

E ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters - FB107]		
<u> </u>	<u>Wi</u> ndow <u>H</u> elp	_ 8 ×
🗅 🛎 🖶 X 🖻 🖻 🥌 🕼 🍹 🔍 🤍 🖊	4 🐜 M· III 🛱 冬 🕑 🗳 🚰 担 📝 ? 隆	
Point Number : 1 - Liq Mtr #1 💌	Tag: Liq Mtr #1	-
General Inputs Advanced Alarms Flow Rates F Meter Description:	Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers	
Product Selection: Product 1 💌 - Crude Oil; F	Product #1	
Meter Type C Linear Diffice Base Temperature 6 00 Deg F C 15 Deg C C 20 Deg C C 30 Deg C Base/Vapor Pressure <u>0.0</u> PSIG Active Alarms: None		
	<u>Print S</u> ave As Aut <u>o</u> Scan 😰 Update <u>C</u> lose	! Apply
٩		•
	ON-LINE	1:41 PM

Figure 15. Liquid Meters, General tab

1. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Description	
Meter Description	Sets a description for the liquid meter, up to 30 alphanumeric characters.	
Product Selection	Sets the product, as defined on the Liquid Products screen, associated with the liquid meter. Click ▼ to display additional products. The liquid type and its tag display to the right of the selected product.	
Meter Type	Sets the type of meter for the liquid meter run. Valid selections are Linear and Orifice.	
	 Notes: Linear meter calculations are based on AGA Report No. 11. Orifice meter calculations are based on ISO5167- 	
	2003.	

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Field	Description	
Base Temperature	Sets the base temperature to which volume flows are adjusted for the liquid meter. Valid selections are 60 Deg F, 15 Deg C, 20 Deg C, and 30 Deg C.	
Base/Vapor Pressure	Sets the base pressure to which volume flows are adjusted for the liquid meter. The pressure units are specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
Active Alarms	This read-only field shows the status of any active alarms associated with this meter. Possible alarms are Low, High, No Flow, and Manual.	
	Notes:	
	 A Manual alarm means one or more of the density, temperature, or pressure I/O definitions on the Inputs tab is Undefined. 	
	 You define these alarms on the Alarms tab. 	

2. Click **Apply** to save any changes, and proceed to *Section 3.3.2* to configure the Inputs tab.

3.3.2 Liquid Meters – Inputs Tab

Use this tab to configure the inputs for a liquid meter and the source for the base density of the fluid passing through the meter.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Inputs** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. One of the following two screens displays.

E ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]		ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]	
Elle Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Icols Window Help	_ 8 ×	Elle Edit Yew ROC Configure Meter Utilities Tools Window Help	- 8 ×
🗅 📽 🖬 🐰 吗 🙉 🕼 🕼 🐨 여 역 🙌 위 🏎 🕪 💾 🖉 🤻	○ ■ ■ ■ ? N?	□ ☞ 팀 ※ 백 68 / 68 / 99 명 역 (시 점 ♥ 사 뿐 87 冬 ⊙ 집 점 신 점 ? ♥?	
Point Number : 1 - Liq Mir #1 💌 Teg:	Liq Mu #1	Point Number : 1 - Liq Mit #1 💌 Teg. Liq Mit #1	ŕ
General Inputs Advanced Alams Flow Rates Flow Totalizers Densities	Day/Month Totalizers	General Inputs Advanced Alams Flow Rates Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers	_
1/0 Definition Values		I/O Definition Values	
Flow Meter Input: AIN A3, EU 1440.0	Bbl/day	Flow Meter Input: AIN A9, EU 150.0 InH20	
Meter Temperature Input: AIN A3, EU	Deg F	Meter Temperature Input: AIN A3, EU	
Meter Pressure Input: AIN A10, EU 50.0	PSIG	Meter Pressure Input: JAIN A10, EU [50.0 PSIG	
StW Input: Undefined 0.0	x	SBW Input: Undefined 0.0 %	
Unit Type of Row Meter Input C Volume C Volume C Volume C Mass C Actual C Calculate Calculate C Calculate Calculate C Calculate Cal	s equal to product's base; filoning from base. base from observed; filoning from base. base from observed; gr equal to observed.	Pipe Diameter 6071 Inches Difice Diameter 60 Inches Low Flow Cutelt 10 Inches Pressure Tap Calculate base from cherrend, calculate base from chererend, calculate base from cherrend, calculate base from ch	
BirxSave Au	Auto Scan 😧 Update Dose ! Acci v	Bink Auto Scan Dose	10/ V

Figure 16(a). Liquid Meters, Inputs tab (Meter Type is Linear)

Figure 16(b). Liquid Meters, Inputs tab (Meter Type is Orifice)

2. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Descri	ption
Flow Meter Input	Sets th Click _ the TL	e source for the flow input for the liquid meter. to display the Select TLP screen and specify P selection.
	If the meter type is linear , the units are volume/time or mass/time, where the units for volume, mass, and time are specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
	If the n differer Prefere	neter type is orifice , the units are the units for ntial pressure specified on the Liquid ences screen.
	Note:	If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the I/O definition, you can manually enter a value in the Value field. Otherwise, the program displays the value for the currently selected input.

Field	Description
Meter Temperature Input	Sets the source for the flowing temperature of the liquid meter. Click is to display the Select TLP screen and specify the TLP selection. The units are the temperature units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the I/O definition, you can manually enter a value in the Value field. Otherwise, the program displays the value for the currently selected input.
Meter Pressure Input	Sets the source for the flowing pressure of the liquid meter. Click display the Select TLP screen and specify the TLP selection. The units are the pressure units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the I/O definition, you can manually enter a value in the Value field. Otherwise, the program displays the value for the currently selected input.
S&W Input	Sets the source for the percent of sediment and water for the liquid meter. Click into display the Select TLP screen and specify the TLP selection
	Note: If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the I/O definition, you can manually enter a value in the Value field. Otherwise, the program displays the value for the currently selected input.
Units Type of Flow Meter	Sets the type of units for the meter flow input. Valid selections are Volume and Mass.
Input	Note: This field only displays when the meter type is linear.
Pipe Diameter	Sets the inside diameter for the pipe near the liquid meter. The units are the diameter units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note : This field only displays when the meter type is orifice.
Orifice Diameter	Sets the diameter of the orifice plate of the liquid meter. The units are the diameter units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: This field only displays when the meter type is orifice.
Low Flow Cutoff	Sets the low flow cutoff point. When the valve of the flow input of the liquid meter is less than this value, the calculated flow rate is set to 0.0, and the system records a No Flow alarm in the Alarm Log if alarming is enabled. The units are the same as the Flow Meter Input.

Field	Description	
Density Options	Sets the source for the base and flowing density of the liquid meter. Valid selections are:	
	Note: This field water.	does not display if the liquid type is
	Set base equal to product base; calculate flowing from base	Liquid meter calculations use the base density of the product assigned to the meter, and calculate the flowing density from the base density.
	Calculate base from observed; calculate flowing from base	Liquid meter calculations determine the base density from the specified Density Interface Point field, and calculate the flowing density from the base density.
	Calculate base from observed; set flowing equal to observed	Liquid meter calculations determine the base density from the specified Density Interface Point field, and set the flowing density to the value of the observed density.
Density Interface Point	Sets the source for meter.	or the observed density of the liquid
	Note: This field of "Calculate Density Op	only displays if you select either base from observed" options in the otions field.
Pressure Tap	Sets the reference for the meter's flowing pressure (valid selections are Gauge and Absolute), and sets the tap location of the meter's flowing pressure sensor (valid selections are Upstream and Downstream).	
	Note: The Upstre display wh	eam and Downstream fields only en the meter type is orifice.

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.3.3* to configure the Advanced tab.

3.3.3 Liquid Meters – Advanced Tab

Use this tab to configure additional information for a liquid meter.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Advanced** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. One of the following two screens displays:

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]		🔤 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]	
Ele Edt Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Tools Window Help	_ 8 ×	Ele Edit Yew BOC Configure Motor Utilities Icols Window Help	_ 8 ×
다 📽 🖬 🐰 🕾 (종) 🕼 🚡 (약 약) 씨 위 🏎 (사 🕆)중 🍳 🛛 🖬 🖬 🖬 ? 😵		D # 문 X % & @ # % 옷 옷 사 전 * M M * # # # # # # @ 2 월 월 년 강 ? # ?	
Prior Number: I-Lig Mt E1 General Input in Advanced Alarma Figure 1 Deruter Deruter Columba Criter Meter Factor / Kedoco Cure Image 1 Index Factor Figure 1 Elevation 500.0 Feet Krantoc 10 00 Meter Factor / Single MF Figure 1 Meter Factor / Single MF 10 Force Recoladation 9 Set Columba		Point Number: I Lighth III Tog Lighth III Greenal Irput: Adams Point Rates Demotion DayMonth Totaloes Immorphics Calculate Enter Immorphics Stainleyrs Steel Point Matrixid Immorphics Field Monit Stainleyrs Steel Point Matrixid Point Matrixid Immorphics Feat Stainleyrs Steel Monit Point Matrixid Point Matrixid Immorphics Feat Stainleyrs Steel Monit Point Matrixid Point Matrixid Immorphics Feat Stainleyrs Steel Point Matrixid Point Matrixid Point Matrixid Immorphics Stainleyrs Steel Point Matrixid Ent Tomporature Ent Tomporature Monit Stainleyrs Steel For Steel Ent Tomporature Estainleyrs Immorphics Stainleyrs Steel For Steel Estainleyrs Estainleyrs Immorphics Stainleyrs Estainleyrs Estainleyrs Estainleyrs Immorphics Stainleyrs Estainleyrs Estainleyrs Estainleyrs Immorphics Stainleyrs Est	
Dint Save As Auto Scan Duce Duce	l Acoly		Aroly
ON-LIN	VE 10:42 AM	ON-LINE	10.03 AM

Figure 17(a). Liquid Meters, Advanced tab (Meter Type is Linear)

Figure 17(b). Liquid Meters, Advanced tab (Meter Type is Orifice)

2. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Description	
Atmospheric Pressure	Sets how the atmospheric pressure at the site of the liquid meter is determined. Valid selections are Calculate and Enter.	
	Select Calculate to calculate the atmospheric pressure based on the specified elevation.	
	Select Enter to manually enter the value for the atmospheric pressure.	
	The units are the pressure (absolute) units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
Elevation	Sets the elevation at the site of the liquid meter. The units are the elevation units selected on the Preferences screen.	
Viscosity	Sets the flowing viscosity for the meter. The units are the viscosity units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
	Note: This field only displays when the meter type is orifice.	

Field	Description	Description	
K-Factor	Sets the linear me for this meter. The Pulse / Unit Mass for the volume or screen	eter constant (K-factor) value used e units are in Pulse / Unit Volume or and must match the units selected mass on the Liquid Preferences	
	Notes:		
	 This field can / Single K-fac in the Meter F 	only be set if you select Single MF ctor or MF Curve / Single K-factor actor / K-factor Options field.	
	This field only linear.	y displays when the meter type is	
Meter Factor	Sets the meter factor (obtained by dividing the quantity of fluid the proving system measured by the quantity the meter indicates during proving) for the liquid meter.		
	Notes:		
	 This field can Single K-fact K-factor Curve Factor / K-fact 	only be set if you select Single MF / tor or ve / Single MF from the Meter tor Options field.	
	 This field only linear. 	$m{y}$ displays when the meter type is	
Meter Factor / K- Factor Options	Sets the option to meter factors. Val	use when calculating K-factors or id selections are:	
	Note: This field is linear.	only displays when the meter type	
	Single MF / Single K-factor	Uses a single meter factor and a single K-factor for the liquid meter. These values are set in the K- factor and Meter Factor fields.	
	MF Curve / Single K-factor	Uses a series of meter factor curve values and a single K-factor. Specify up to 12 meter factors corresponding to flow rates in the Meter Factor / K-factor Curve frame, and a value for the K-factor field.	
	K-factor Curve / Single MF	Uses a series of K-factor curve values and a single meter factor. Specify up to 12 K-factors corresponding to pulse frequencies in the Meter Factor / K-factor Curve frame, and a value for the Meter Factor field.	
Force Recalculation	Forces an immed current main calcu calculation period force the recalcula complete, the sele	iate recalculation of the flow for the ulation period (mcp). A new main begins at this time. Select Set to ation. When the recalculation is ection is automatically reset to Clear.	

Field	Description		
Meter Factor / K- factor Curve	Sets up to 12 entrouve.	ries for the Meter Factor / K-factor	
	Notes:		
	 The fields in this frame can only be set if you select MF Curve / Single K-factor or K-factor Curve / Single MF in the Meter Factor / K-factor Options field. 		
	 This field only linear. 	y displays when the meter type is	
Orifice Material	Sets the material of construction of the orifice. Valid selections are Stainless Steel , Monel , and Carbon Steel .		
	Note: This field is orifice.	only displays when the meter type	
	Ref Temperature	Sets the reference temperature for the measurement of the orifice diameter. The units are the temperature units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
Pipe Material	Sets the material the orifice is insta Steel, Monel, and	of construction of the pipe in which lled. Valid selections are Stainless I Carbon Steel.	
	Note: This field is orifice.	only displays when the meter type	
	Ref Temperature	Sets the reference temperature for the measurement of the pipe diameter. The units are the temperature units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.	

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.3.4* to configure the Alarms tab.

3.3.4 Liquid Meters – Alarms Tab

Use this tab to configure the alarms for a liquid meter.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Alarms** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. The following screen displays:

🚟 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]		
<u> </u>	<u>T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	- 8 ×
🗅 😅 🖬 X 🖻 🛍 🍜 🚅 🔍 🔍	v4 11 🐜 v4 11 🛱 冬 🛇 🖺 😫 担 💕 ? 🕅	
Point Number : 1 - Liq Mtr #1	Tag: Liq Mtr.#1 Rates Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers	
Alarming Option Disabled Alarm on Indicated Volume Rate Alarm on Gross Volume Rate Alarm on Standard Volume Rate Alarm on Mass Rate RBX On Alarm Set On Alarm Clear	High Alarm Limit: 100000.0 Bbl/day Low Alarm Limit: 1000.0 Bbl/day Alarm Deadband: 100.0 Bbl/day	
	Print Save As AutoScan 🖗 Update Diose	! Apply
1		
	ON-LINE	10:43 AM

Figure 18. Liquid Meters, Alarms tab

2. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Description	Description	
Alarming Option	Sets the parameter whose value is to be used for alarming. Valid selections include Disabled, Alarm on Indicated Volume Rate, Alarm on Gross Volume Rate, Alarm on Gross Standard Volume Rate, Alarm on Net Standard Volume Rate, and Alarm on Mass Rate.		
RBX	Enables Report-by-Exception (RBX) alarm messages. These messages are sent via communication ports that have RBX mode enabled.		
	On Alarm Set	When the value of the parameter for alarming enters the alarm condition, the FB107 generates an RBX message(s).	
	On Alarm Clear	When the value of the parameter	

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Field	Description
	for alarming clears the alarm condition, the FB107 generates an RBX message(s).
High Alarm Limit	Sets the value at or above which the value of the parameter for alarming must rise to generate a high alarm. The units are based on the selected Alarming Option.
Low Alarm Limit	Sets the value at or below which the value of the parameter for alarming must fall to generate a low alarm. The units are based on the selected Alarming Option.
Alarm Deadband	Sets a value that defines a zone above the Low Alarm Limit and below the High Alarm Limit. When an alarm condition is set, the value of the alarming parameter must clear the alarm limit plus the zone defined by the deadband, before the alarm condition clears. This deadband prevents the system from setting and clearing the alarm continuously when the value of the alarming parameter oscillates around the alarm limit. The units are based on the selected Alarming Option.

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.3.5* to view the values on the Flow Rates tab.

3.3.5 Liquid Meters – Flow Rates Tab

Use this tab to view the current values of a liquid meter's flow rates.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Flow Rates** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. One of the following three screens displays:

🖀 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]		Source (Liquid Meters)				
Ele Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Iools Window Help		Ele Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilitie	Ble Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Icols Window Help			
🗅 📽 🖬 🐰 🐵 🕼 🕼 🕼 🐂 🔍 역 🙌 위 🐜 🕪 🕂 🖉 櫡 🕑	월 월 🛃 💕 ? K?	🗅 🚅 🖬 X 🗠 📾 🐼 🕼 🐂 🔍 🍳	: W 🏘 M 🖁 🖉 🥝	N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N		
Point Number : 1 - Lig Mit #1 💌 Teg. Lig	Mt #1	Point Number : 1 - Liq Mir #1 💌	Teg: Liq	Ms #1		
General Inputs Advanced Alams Flow Rates Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers		General Inputs Advanced Alarms Flo	w Rates Flow Totalizers Densities Day/	Month Totalizers		
Indicated Volume Rate: 1440.0 Bbl/day	(M)	Indicated Mass Rate:	490000.0 Lb/day	(M)		
Gross Volume Rate: 1440.0 Bbl/day	(GV = IV * MF)	Gross Volume Rate:	1384.805 Bbl/day	(GV = GM / Flowing Density)		
Gross Standard Volume Rate: 1425.455 Bbl/day	(GSV = GV * CTL * CPL)	Gross Standard Volume Rate:	1370.818 Bbl/day	(GSV = GV * CTL * CPL)		
Net Standard Volume Rate: 1425.455 Bbl/day	(NSV = GSV * CSW)	Net Standard Volume Rate:	1370.010 Bbl/day	(NSV = GSV * CSW)		
St/W Volume Rate: 0.0 Bbl/day	(SI/W = GSV - NSV)	S&W/Volume Rate:	0.0 Bbl/day	(SIW = GSV - NSV)		
Gross Mass Rate: 499131.7 Lb/day	(GM = GV * Flowing Density)	Gross Mass Rate:	480000.0 Lb/day	(GM = IM * MF)		
<u>Pira Save As</u>	Aug Scan [[2] Update Olice ! Arch	1	<u>Pint</u> <u>S</u> ave As	Nug Scan 🔁 Update Close ! Accour		

Figure 19(a). Liquid Meters, Flow Rates tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Volume)

Figure 19(b). Liquid Meters, Flow Rates tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Mass)

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]				
Ble Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter UR	lities <u>⊺</u> ools <u>₩</u> indow <u>H</u> ei	p		_ 8 ×
	역 🛯 🖌 🖌 🚺 🗰 🕅 🕅	1 3 4 () 🛾 🖉 🔟 🛒 ? 🕅	
Point Number : 1 - Lig Mtr #1		Tag L	iq Mtr #1	-
			1	
General Inputs Advanced Alams	Flow Rates Flow Totalizers	Densities Da	y/Month Totalizers	1
Gross Volume Rat	e: 23850.89	Bbl/day	(GV = GM / Flowing Density)	
Gross Standard Volume Rat	e: 23609.98	Bbl/day	(GSV = GV * CTL * CPL)	
Net Standard Volume Rat	e: 23609.90	Bbl/day	(NSV = GSV * CSW)	
SI/W/ Volume Rat	* 0.0	Bbl/day	(SIW = GSV - NSV)	
Gross Mass Ra	P267177.0	Lb/day	(GM)	
0.000 1000 110	in perior in the	coosy	fourt	
	Print	Save As	Auto Scan 😧 Update 🔍 Qiot	e ! Apply
•				
			ON-	LINE 11:09 AM

Figure 19(c). Liquid Meters, Flow Rates tab (Meter Type is Orifice)

Field	Description		
Indicated Volume Rate	This read-only field shows the current indicated volume (IV) flow rate. The units are as specified for the volume and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume.		
Indicated Mass Rate	This read-only field shows the current indicated mass (IM) flow rate. The units are as specified for the mass and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass.		
Gross Volume Rate	This read-only field shows the current gross volume (GV) flow rate.		
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume , the program calculates this value by multiplying the indicated volume (IV) rate by the meter factor (MF).		
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass or if the Meter Type field is set to Orifice , he program calculates this value by dividing the gross mass (GM) flow rate by the flowing density.		
	The units are the volume and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
Gross Standard Volume Rate	This read-only field shows the current gross standard volume (GSV) flow rate. The program calculates this value by multiplying the gross volume (GV) rate by the correction factor for the temperature of the liquid (CTL) and the correction factor for the pressure of the liquid (CPL).		
	The units are the volume and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
Net Standard Volume Rate	This read-only field shows the current net standard volume (NSV) flow rate. The program calculates this value by multiplying the gross standard volume (GSV) rate by the base sediment and water (S&W) correction factor. The units are as specified for the volume and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		

2. Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:
Field	Description
S&W Volume Rate	This read-only field shows the current sediment and water (S&W) volume flow rate. The program calculates this value by subtracting the net standard volume (NSV) flow rate from the gross standard volume (GSV) flow rate. The units are as specified for the volume and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Gross Mass Rate	This read-only field shows the current gross mass (GM) flow rate. The units are as specified for the mass and flow rate time units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume, the program calculates this value by multiplying the gross volume (GV) flow rate by the flowing density.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass , the program calculates this value by multiplying the indicated mass (IM) flow rate by the meter factor (MF).
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Orifice , this value is the result of the ISO5167-2003 orifice flow rate calculation.

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.3.6* to view the values on the Flow Totals tab.

3.3.6 Liquid Meters – Flow Totalizers Tab

Use this tab to view the values of a liquid meter's continuous flow totalizers.

Note: Each totalizer value rolls over when its value exceeds 1,000,000.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Flow Totalizers** tab on the Liquid Meter screen. One of the following three screens displays:



Figure 20(a). Liquid Meters, Flow Totalizers tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Volume)

Figure 20(b). Liquid Meters, Flow Totalizers tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Mass)

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]							
He Edt Yew BOC Configure Meter U	attes Iools Window Help	8.4	() S S	ki 🛒 🤉	12	-	
		10.14		LA UP 1			5
int Number : 1 - Lig Mir #1		Tag	Lind Wit #1				
General Inputs Advanced Alams	Flow Rates Flow Totalizers	Densities	Day/Month Tot	alizers			
							ſ
Course Maharan Tarak	100005-10	D.L	10V - 0V	(Davies Davie)			
Laross volume Totak	J40235.43	UD4	juv = um /	Prowing Density)			
Gross Standard Volume Total	39829.02	Bbl	(GSV = GV	* CTL * CPL)			
Net Standard Volume Total	39829.02	вы	(NSV = GS	V * CSW)			
S&W Volume Total	0.0	вы	(S&W = GS	V · NSV)			
Gross Mass Tola	10946370.0	ιь	(GM)				
	Print	Save As	Auto Scan	Update	Qlose	! Apply	
							•

Figure 20(c). Liquid Meters, Flow Totalizers tab (Meter Type is Orifice)

Field	Description
Indicated Volume Total	This read-only field shows the indicated volume (IV) flow totalizer. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume .
Indicated Mass Total	This read-only field shows the indicated mass (IM) flow totalizer. The units are the mass units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass .
Gross Volume Total	This read-only field shows the current gross volume (GV) flow totalizer.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume , the program calculates this value by multiplying the indicated volume (IV) flow by the meter factor (MF). The result is added to the totalizer once a second.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass , or if the Meter Type is Orifice, the program calculates this value by dividing the gross mass (GM) flow by the flowing density. The result is added to the totalizer once a second.
	The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Gross Standard Volume Total	This read-only field shows the gross standard volume (GSV) flow totalizer. The program calculates this value by multiplying the gross volume (GV) flow by the correction factor for the temperature of the liquid (CTL) and the correction factor for the pressure of the liquid (CPL). The result is added to the totalizer once a second. Units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Net Standard Volume Total	This read-only field shows the current net standard volume (NSV) flow totalizer. The program calculates this value by multiplying the gross standard volume (GSV) flow by the base sediment and water (CSW) correction factor. The result is added to the totalizer once a second. Units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.

Field	Description
S&W Volume Total	This read-only field shows the sediment and water (S&W) volume flow totalizer. The program calculates this value by adding, the net standard volume (NSV) flow minus the gross standard volume (GSV) flow, to the totalizer once a second. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Gross Mass Total	This read-only field shows the gross mass (GM) flow totalizer.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume, the program calculates this value by multiplying the gross volume (GV) flow by the flowing density. The result is added to the totalizer once a second.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass , the program calculates this value by multiplying the indicated mass (IM) flow by the meter factor (MF). The result is added to the totalizer once a second.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Orifice , the program calculates this value by integrating the result of the ISO5167-2003 orifice flow rate calculation, once a second.
	The units are the mass units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.

- **3.** Click **Apply** to save any changes.
- **4.** Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.3.7* to view the values on the Densities tab.

3.3.7 Liquid Meters – Densities Tab

Use this tab to view a meter's correction factors, densities, and information showing how these values are calculated.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Densities** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. One of the following two screens displays:

E ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Meters]			🖀 ROCLINK 800 - [Liguid Meters]	
Ele Edit Yew ROC Configure Meter Utilities Tools	<u>Window</u> Help	_ 8 ×	Ble Edit Wew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Icols Window Help	đΧ
🗅 📽 🖬 X 🗠 📾 🐼 🕼 🖕 4. 4. 4. 14.	뛰 🐜 사 는 공 🦧 🕑 📓 📓 坦 💕 ? 校		D 📽 🖬 ※ 명 환 🐼 🕼 🖫 역 역 · 사 위 🐜 M· 뿐 🖉 🋎 🕑 🖺 🚰 🕈 🛠	
Point Number : 1 - Lig Mtr #1	Tag: Lig Mtr #1	-	Point Number : 1 - Lig Mtr #1 💌 Teg: Lig Mtr #1	-
General Inputs Advanced Alams Flow Rates	Flow Totalizers Densities Day/Month Totalizers		General Inputs Advanced Alams Flow Rates Flow Totalzers Densities Day/Month Totalzers	1
Concotion Factors CTL: [0.9992737 CPL: [1.000188] CTPL: [0.9999 Alpha: [0.3987773] 10"3 x Vol Fac/Pog F P: [0.2785203] 10"5 x Vol Fac/Pog F CSW Factor: [1.0] Tables Used for Concotion Factors Tempodue Table: Alf Procedue 11.1.6 2004 Pressue Table: APT Table 2004	Density Values Density Sources Base Density: gase Density: 1993.0 Kg/n3 Flowing Density: Equal to Base of Product 1 - Prod 1998.9055 Kg/n3	Lef #1	Concetion Factors Density Values Danity Sources CTL: [0.999974] Bale Density: Bale Density: CPL: [0.9982] [0.9882] APA: [0.855164] 10"3 xVol Fisc/Dep F Flowing Density: [0.9415326] 10"5 xVol Fisc/Dep F CSW Factor: [1.0 [0.950,0] Tables Used for Conscion Factors [0.950,0] Kg/h3	
	Dire SaveAs AutoScan (12) Update) Doce	! Arob]
	ION-LIN	NE 10:54 AM	0N-LINE 11:15	AM /

Figure 21(a). Liquid Meters, Densities tab (Base Density Source is Product)

Figure 21(b). Liquid Meters, Densities tab (Base Density Source is Density Interface)

2.	Review—and change	as necessary-	-the values	in the	following	fields:
	0				0	

Field	Description
CTL	This read-only field shows the correction factor for the temperature of the liquid when calculating the flowing density from the base density. The value is updated each main calculation period (mcp), which is one minute, using the average temperature during the mcp.
CPL	This read-only field shows the correction factor for the pressure of the liquid when calculating the flowing density from the base density. The value is updated each main calculation period (mcp), which is one minute, using the average pressure during the mcp.
CTPL	This read-only field shows the correction factor for the temperature and pressure of the liquid when calculating the flowing density from the base density. It is calculated as CTL * CPL.

Field	Description
Alpha	This read-only field shows the coefficient of thermal expansion of the liquid when adjusting the volume from the base to the flowing temperature. The units are 10 ³ times the volume fraction per temperature unit. The temperature units are as specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.
F	This read-only field shows the compressibility of the liquid when adjusting the volume from the base to the flowing pressure. If the meter's base pressure is 60 Deg F, the units are 10^5 times the volume fraction per pressure unit. If the meter's base pressure is 15, 20, or 30 Deg C, the units are 10^6 times the volume fraction per pressure unit. The pressure units are as specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.
CSW Factor	This read-only field shows the correction factor for the sediment and water in the liquid. It is calculated as $(100 - S\&W) / 100$. Its value is 1.0 when the % of sediment and water (S&W) is 0.0 %.
Base Density (Density Values)	This read-only field shows the density of the liquid at the base temperature and pressure. The units are specified by the Base and Flowing Density Units field on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Flowing Density (Density Values)	This read-only field shows the density of the liquid at the flowing temperature and pressure. The units are specified by the Base and Flowing Density Units field on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Observed Density (Density Values)	This read-only field shows the density of the liquid at the observed temperature and pressure. The units are specified by the Base and Flowing Density Units field on the Liquid Preferences screen.
	Note: This field only displays when the Density Option on the Inputs tab is set to one of the selections for calculating the base from the observed density.
Base Density (Density Sources)	This read-only field shows the source of the base density value. Valid values are Equal to Base of Product or Calculated from Observed.
Flowing Density (Density Sources)	This read-only field shows the source of the flowing density value. Valid values are Calculated from Base or Equal to Observed.
Observed Density	This read-only field shows the density interface point for the observed density.
(Density Sources)	Note: This field only displays when the Density Option on the Inputs tab is set to one of the selections for calculating the base from the observed density.

Field	Description		
Tables Used for Correction Factor	This read-only fie (also referred to a flowing density an liquid.	ld show s "table" d, if spe	s the correction standards) used in calculating the cified, base density of the
Tables Used for Correction Factor (continued)	Temperature Table	This re temper (also re calcula if spec liquid. possib Entries base d conver require	ead-only field shows the rature correction standard eferred to as "table") used in ating the flowing density and, ified, base density of the The following are the le entries for the field. Is followed by "*" indicate the ensity value for the table is ted to the density units ed by the table.
	API Table 54 API Table 56 API Table 56 API Table 60 API Table 23 API Table 23 API Table 23 GPA TP-27 API Table 23 API Table 53 API Table 53 GPA TP-27 53E/54E API 2540 Ta IP-3 Table 5 IP-3 Table 5 IP-3 Table 5 GPA TP-27 59E/60E API Procedu 2004	A/6A 3/6B D/6D C 3A/24A 3B/24B 3D/24D 23E/24E 4C 3A/54A 3B/54B 3D/54D Table ble 54C 9A/60A 9B/60B 9D/60D Table ire 11.1.	API Procedure 11.1.7 2004 API Table 23A/24A* API Table 23B/24B* API Table 23D/24D* GPA TP-27 23E/24E* API Table 24C* API Table 53A/54A* API Table 53B/54B* API Table 53D/54D* GPA TP-27 Table 53E/54E* API 2540 Table 54C* IP-3 Table 59A/60A* IP-3 Table 59B/60B* IP-3 Table 59D/60D* GPA TP-27 Table 59E/60E* API 11.4.1 (2003) Invalid Table
		Note:	"Invalid Table" appears when the liquid type is a refined product (gasoline, jet fuel, or fuel oil) and the base density is out of range. The valid base density range for refined products are as follows: 1980 Tables: 350.0 – 1075.0 kg/m3 2004 Tables: 350.0 – 1163.5 kg/m3.

Field	Description				
Tables Used for Correction Factor (continued)	Pressure Table	ure Table This read-only field sh pressure correction star referred to as "table") u calculating the flowing if specified, base dens liquid. The following ar possible entries for the			
		User API API API API API API Inval	Entered F Table 11.2.1 Table 11.2.1M Table 11.2.2 Table 11.2.2M Prodedure 11.1.6 2004 Prodedure 11.1.7 2004 11.4.1 2003 id Table		
		Note:	"Invalid Table" appears when the liquid type is a refined product (gasoline, jet fuel, or fuel oil) and the base density is out of range. The valid base density range for refined products are as follows:		
			1980 Tables: 350.0 – 1075.0 kg/m3 2004 Tables: 350.0 – 1163.5 kg/m3		

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.3.8* to view the values on the Day/Month Totalizers tab.

3.3.8 Liquid Meters – Day/Month Totalizers Tab

Use this tab to view a liquid meter's totalizers for the current and previous day and month.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Day/Month Totalizers** tab on the Liquid Meters screen. One of the following three screens displays:

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid M Ele Edit Yew BOC Conf	eters] igure Meter Litilitie	s <u>T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow Help			
I Number : 1 - Lig Mir #1	ા છા આ ગામ ચાલ્યલ 🖃	: vi 11 ≪ i∧i 11	Tag: [Lig Mti #1	FI <u>EL</u> ∰7 ? ¥? -	
General Inputs Adv	anced Alama Flo	Rates Flow Totalizers	Densities Day/Month T	otalizers	
	Today	Yesterday	Month	Previous Month	
Indicated Volume:	13.01666	0.0	13.01666	0.0	BN
Gross Volume:	13.01666	0.0	13.01666	0.0	BN
Gross Standard Volume:	12.88646	0.0	12.88646	0.0	BPI
Net Standard Volume:	12.88646	0.0	12.88646	0.0	Bbl
S&W Volume:	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	Bbi
Gross Mass:	4512.272	0.0	4512.272	0.0	Lb
		Print	Save As Auto Sci	n (<u>Cupdate</u>) <u>D</u> os	e I Aroly

Figure 22(a). Liquid Meters, Day/Month Totalizer tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Volume)

te Edit New BOC	Configure Meter Utilit	es <u>I</u> ools <u>Wi</u> ndow <u>H</u> elp			
≥ 12 3 46 165	8 8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	C VN 18 🏎 MA H			
Number : 1 - Liq Mtr #1	-		Teg: [Liq Mtr #1		
Consultance I		aulo rucul	Dentity Denthlash T	antara 1	
General I inputs	Advanced Alams Fic	w Hates Flow Localcers	Densities Day/Month I	oranzers	
	Today	Yesterday	Month	Previous Month	
Indicated M	4889: [2300.0	10.0	12300.0		Lb
Gross Vol	ame: [6.635522]0.0	6.635522]0.0	BPI
Gross Standard Vol	.me: 6.568499	0.0	6.568499	0.0	BPI
Net Standard Vol	.me: 6.568499	0.0	6.568499	0.0	BPI
S&W Volu	me: 0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	BN
Gross M	ass: 2300.0	0.0	2300.0	0.0	Lb
		Print	Save As Auto Sca	n RUndate Close	e E Land
		Daw	Tarara had age	Tel Marshell Teas	1 0111

Figure 22(b). Liquid Meters, Day/Month Totalizer tab (Meter Type is Linear and Units Type of Flow Meter Input is Mass)

ROC	LINK 800 - [Liquid M	leters]				
Ele	Edit Yew BOC Conf	figure Meter Utilities]	ools <u>₩</u> indow <u>H</u> elp			- 8 ×
🗅 💣	🖬 X 🖻 🛍 🖉	21] = ~ ~ ~ ,	N 🗄 🕶 [M 👫]	8 🤻 🕑 🖺 📲 🛛	⊴ ∰ ? \?	
Point Nu	mber: 1 - Lig Mtr #1	•		Teg: Liq Mtr #1		-
	General Inputs Adv	anced Alams Flow Ra	tes Flow Totalizers De	nsities Day/Month Totalia	zers	1
		Today	Yesterday	Month	Previous Month	
	Gross Volume:	40272.73	0.0	40272.73	0.0	BN
	Gross Standard Volume:	39865.94	0.0	39865.94	0.0	⁻ вы
	Net Standard Volume:	39865.94	0.0	33065.94	0.0	BЫ
	S&W Volume:	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	BN
	Gross Mass:	13959300.0	0.0	13959300.0	0.0	ь
			<u>Print</u>	ave As Auto Scan	Update Qiose	: Apply
•						•
					ON-LI	NE 11:10 AM

Figure 22(c). Liquid Meters, Day/Month Totalizer tab (Meter Type is Orifice)

Field	Description		
Indicated Volume	This read-only field shows the indicated volume (IV) flow totals for the current and previous days and months. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume .		
Indicated Mass	This read-only field shows the indicated mass (IM) flow totals for the current and previous days and months. The units are the mass units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
	Note: This field only displays when the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass .		
Gross Volume	This read-only field shows the gross volume (GV) flow totals for the current and previous days and months.		
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume , the program calculates this value by multiplying the indicated volume (IV) by the meter factor (MF) and adding the result to the totalizers. This calculation occurs once a second.		
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass , or if the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to is Orifice , the program calculates this value by dividing the gross mass (GM) flow by the flowing density and adding the result to the totalizers. This calculation occurs once a second.		
	The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		
Gross Standard Volume	This read-only field shows the gross standard volume (GSV) flow totals for the current and previous days and months. The program calculates these values by adding the gross volume (GV) multiplied by the correction factors for the temperature of the liquid (CTL) and pressure of the liquid (CPL) to the totalizers once a second. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.		

Field	Description
Net Standard Volume	This read-only field shows the net standard volume (NSV) flow totals for the current and previous days and months. The program calculates these values by adding the gross standard volume (GSV) multiplied by the sediment and water (CSW) correction factor to the totalizers once a second. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
S&W Volume	This read-only field shows the sediment and water (S&W) flow totals for the current and previous days and months. The program calculates these values by adding the net standard volume (NSV) flow minus the gross standard volume (GSV) flow to the totalizers once a second. The units are the volume units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.
Gross Mass	This read-only field shows the gross mass (GM) flow totals for the current and previous days and months.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Volume, the values are calculated by adding the gross volume (GV) flow multiplied by the flowing density to the totalizers once a second.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Linear and the Units Type of Flow Meter Input field on the Inputs tab is set to Mass , the values are calculated by adding the indicated mass (IM) flow multiplied by the meter factor (MF) to the totalizers once a second.
	If the Meter Type field on the General tab is set to Orifice , the values are calculated by integrating the result of the ISO5167-2003 orifice flow rate calculation once a second.
	The units are the mass units selected on the Liquid Preferences screen.

- **3.** Click **Apply** to save any changes.
- **4.** Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.4* to configure the liquid density interfaces and view the calculated values.

3.4 Liquid Density Interfaces Screen

Use this screen to configure up to two liquid density interfaces, and view the resulting calculated (also called "observed") density values.

To access this screen:

- 1. Click User Program > Liquid Alloc from the ROCLINK configuration tree.
- **2.** Double-click **Display #27, Liquid Density Interfaces**. The Liquid Density Interfaces screen displays:

ROCLINK	800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]	
<u> </u>	<u>V</u> iew <u>R</u> OC <u>C</u> onfigure <u>M</u> eter <u>U</u> tilities <u>T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	- 8 ×
🗅 🖻 🖪	x 🖻 💼 🥌 😰 🍹 🔍 🤍 M M ቚ M M 🛱 🦉 🏈 🎴 🗳 🗵 💕 ? 🎗	
Point Number :	1 - Density #1 Tag: Density #1	–
	General Inputs Micro Motion Constants UGC Constants Alarms	
	Density Input Type	_
	Micro Motion (or Solartron)	
	© 7830/40 or 7835/45/46/47 Densitometer	
	C UGC 278 Densitometer	
	• Analog Density (Ng/m3)	
	Observed Density: 999.016 Kg/m3	
	Active Alarms: None	
	Print Save As Auto Scan 😰 Update Close !	
•		¥
	ON-LINE	11:52 AM

Figure 23. Liquid Density Interfaces Screen

- **Note:** Two fields at the top of the screen (Point Number and Tag) appear on all tabs.
- **3.** Review—and change as necessary—the values in the following fields:

Field	Description		
Point Number	 Selects the liquid density interface to configure. Click ▼ to display all of the liquid density interfaces. Clicking a different liquid density interface causes the screen to display the values for that density interface. 		
Тад	Sets a unique identifier for the selected liquid density interface.		

4. Click **Apply** to save any changes, and proceed to *Section 3.4.1* to configure the General tab.

3.4.1 Liquid Density Interfaces – General Tab

Use this tab (which displays when you access the Liquid Density Interfaces screen) to configure a density interface point's type of density input and correction factor, and view its observed density and alarm statuses.

Source State		🔤 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]
Ele Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Iools Window Help	_ 6 ×	Bie Edit View BOC Configure Heter Utilites Iools Window Help
D 📽 🖬 ※ 박 🖻 🥔 🕼 🖫 박 약 (씨 위 🏎 M 위 🖉 🖉 🛇 🏽 🎬 빈 💕 ? 🛠 🦳		□ ☞ 묘 ※ % & @ @ % ♥ ♥ ♥ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩ ₩
Point Number : 1 - Density #1 💌 Tag: Density #1	-	Point Number : 1 - Density #1 💌 Tag: Density #1
General Inputs Micro Motion Constants UGC Constants Alarms		General Inputs Micro Motion Constants UGC Constants Alarma
Density Input Type Conscion Factor Conscin Factor Conscion Factor		Dennity Kout Type Micro Motion for SoleNeer Micro Motion for SoleNeer Dennity Control or 2555/455/457 Dennity Control or 2555/455/457 Dennity Control or 2555/455/457 Dennity Control or 2557/455/457 C UGC 2210 Dennitoreter C Analog Dennity (Kg/m3)
Observed Density: [998.016 Kp/m3		Observed Density: (998.016 Kg/m3
Active Alams: None		Active Alarm: None
	l Apply	
4	•	
ON-LIN	11:51 AM	ON-LINE 11:52AM

Figure 24(a). Liquid Density Interfaces, General tab (Density Input Type is an Analog Density)

Figure 24(b). Liquid Density Interfaces, General tab (Density Input Type is a Frequency Densitometer)

1.	Review—and change as necessary-	—the	values	in the	following fi	ields:
----	---------------------------------	------	--------	--------	--------------	--------

Field	Description		
Density Input Type	Sets the type of density input. The density value can be from a frequency densitometer or an analog value Valid selections include Micro Motion (or Solartron) 7830/40 or 7835/45/46/47, UGC 278 Densitometer, and Analog Density.	e.	
	Note: The input units of a frequency densitometer are Hz. The resulting density is in the units o the Observed Density specified on the Liquid Preference screen. The units of an Analog Density Input value must be the units of the Observed Density specified on the Liquid Preferences screen.	ıf 1	
Observed Density	This read-only field shows the calculated observed density of the selected density interface point. The units are those for the Observed Density specified of the Liquid Preferences screen.	n	

Field	Description			
Active Alarms	This read-only field shows the status of any active alarms of the density interface point. Possible alarms are Low, High, and Manual.			
	Notes:			
	 A Manual alarm means one or more of the density, temperature, or pressure I/O definitions on the Inputs tab is Undefined. 			
	 You define these alarms on the Alarms tab. 			
Density Correction Factor	Sets a density correction factor, which is a multiplier to correct the densitometer's calculated density. This value is typically obtained after performing a densitometer calibration using a pycnometer or similar device.			
Apply Hydrometer Correction	Select to apply a correction for the temperature effects on a glass hydrometer. For more information, refer to the Manual of Petroleum Measurement Standards, Chapter 9.			
	Note: This field only displays when Analog Density is selected as the Density Input Type.			

2. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.4.2* to configure the Inputs tab.

3.4.2 Liquid Density Interfaces – Inputs Tab

Use this tab to configure a density interface point's inputs for density, temperature, and pressure.

To access this tab:

1. Select the **Inputs** tab on the Liquid Density Interfaces screen. One of the following two screens display:

E ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]		🔤 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]	
Ele Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Tools Window Help	_ 8 ×	Ble Edit Yew ROC Configure Meter Utilities Icols Window Help	_ 8 ×
🗅 📽 🖬 🐰 哈 🕼 🕼 🕼 🐨 막 약 이 사 위 ቚ 🕪 🕂 🖉 🦉 🖾 👹 🤶 😵		🗅 📽 🔜 🖇 📾 🚳 🕼 🖕 약 약 [사 위 🐜 [사 문 🗟 🐐 😋 🖬 🖬 🛃 ? 😚	
Point Number : 1 - Dennity #1 💌 Tag: Dennity #1	÷	Point Number : 1 - Density #1 💌 Tag. [Density #1	Î
General Inputs Micro Motion Constants UGC Constants Alarms		General Inputs Micro Motion Constants USC Constants Alarms	
1/0 Definition Values	-	1/0 Definition Values	-
Dennity: AIN 81, EU 999.016 Kg/m3		Density: AIN 81, EU 706, 5909 Hz	
Temperature: AIN 82, EU 95.0 Deg F		Temperature: AIN B2, EU 95.0 Deg F	
Pressure: AIN 89, EU 150.0 Paig		Pressure: AIN 89, EU 150.0 Psig	
		Periodic Time: 1415.246 micro Seconds	
Print Save As Auto Scan Dudate Quise	1 ADDW	Brint Save As Auto Scan 😰 Update Quise !	Acoly
ON-LINE	11:38 AM	OM-LINE	11:45AM

Figure 25(a). Liquid Density Interfaces, Inputs tab (Density Input Type is an Analog Density)

Figure 25(b). Liquid Density Interfaces, Inputs tab (Density Input Type is a Frequency Densitometer)

Field Description		
Density	Assigns the point type, logical, and parameter (TLP) of the density I/O value of the selected density interface point. Click to display the Select TLP screen and define your TLP selection.	
	Note: If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the density input, you can manually enter a value for the density input. Otherwise, the value of the selected input is displayed.	
Temperature	Assigns the point type, logical, and parameter (TLP) of the temperature I/O value for the selected density interface point. Click to display the Select TLP screen and define your TLP selection.	
	Note: If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the temperature input, you can manually enter a value for the temperature. Otherwise, the value of the selected input is displayed.	

Field	Description		
Pressure	Assigns the point type, logical, and parameter (TLP) of the pressure I/O value for the selected density interface point. Click I to display the Select TLP screen and define your TLP selection.		
	Note:	If you select Undefined (0, 0, 0) for the pressure input, you can manually enter a value for the static pressure. Otherwise, the value of the selected input is displayed.	
Periodic Time	This read-only field shows the time between pulses i microseconds.		
	Note:	This field displays only if a Frequency Densitometer is selected as the Density Input Type.	

- **3.** Click **Apply** to save any changes.
- **4.** Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.4.3* to configure the Micro Motion Constants tab.

3.4.3 Liquid Density Interfaces – Micro Motion Constants Tab

Use this tab to configure a density interface point's constants for calculating the density of a Micro Motion densitometer.

Notes:

- Micro Motion densitometers were formerly labeled as Solartron densitometers.
- These fields only display when the Density Input Type field on the General tab is set to Micro Motion (or Solartron) 7830/40 or 7835/45/46/47. For further details, refer to the Micro Motion Technical Manual for 7835/45/46/47 Liquid Density Meter (78355080_US Rev. C, October 2007)
- The constants entered must be from a calibration certificate using density units of Kg/m3, temperature units of Deg C, and pressure units of BarA.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Micro Motion Constants** tab on the Liquid Density Interfaces screen. One of the following two display:



Figure 26(a). Liquid Density Interfaces, Micro Motion
Constants tab [Density Input Type is not a Micro Motion (or
Solartron) Densitometer]

ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]	
Elle Edit Yew BOC Configure Meter Utilities Icols Window Help	_ 8 ×
🗅 📽 🖬 🐰 哈 🕼 🕼 🕼 🔍 약 약 (서 월 ቚ M 🕂 🖉 🤻 🕑 🖺 🎬 🛛 💕 ? 校	
Point Number: 1-Density #1 Tag: [Density #1 General] Inputs: Micro Motion Constants] Alams	Ě
Basic Transdoor Constants Temperature Concision Constants K0 1992.07 K1 6229423 Pensuse Concision Constants K18 K204 00001411 K204 000002 K214 01189 K218 000002 K218 0000002 K218 0000002 K218 0000002 K218 0000000 K218 0000000 K218 0000000 K218 0000000 K	
 Pirk SaveAs AutpScan ≧ Updane Dune !	ároly
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ON-LINE 1	1:46 AM

Figure 26(b). Liquid Density Interfaces, Micro Motion Constants tab [Density Input Type is a Micro Motion (or Solartron) Densitometer]

Field	Description
Basic	Sets three transducer constant values KO, K1 & K2
Transducer	used to calculate the uncorrected density for the Micro
Constants	Motion (or Solartron) densitometer.

Field	Description	
Pressure Correction Constants	Sets four pressure correction constant values (K20A, K20B, K21A, and K21B) for the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer.	
Temperature Correction Constants	Sets two temperature correction constant values (K18 & K19) for the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer.	
Velocity of Sound Correction	Enables or disables correction of the density for the velocity of sound in the liquid. Valid values are Enabled or Disabled.	
Liquid VOS Sets a v sound in Motion (Sets a value for the velocity of sound in the liquid for the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer.
	Calibration VOS	This read-only field shows the calculated calibration value for the velocity of sound in the liquid based on the temperature and pressure corrected density.

3. Click **Apply** to save any changes and proceed to *Section 3.4.4* to configure the UGC Constants tab.

3.4.4 Liquid Density Interfaces – UGC Constants Tab

Use this tab to configure a density interface point's constants for calculating the density for a UGC 278 densitometer.

Notes:

- These fields only display when the Density Input Type field on the General tab is set to UGC 278 Densitometer. For further details, refer to the (UGC) Model 278 Vibrating Densitometer User Manual (UA27800 Rev B).
- The constants entered must be from a calibration certificate using density units of g/cm3, temperature units of Deg F, and pressure units of Psig.

To access this screen:

1. Select the UGC Constants tab on the Liquid Density Interfaces screen. One of the following two screens display:



Figure 27(a). Liquid Density Interfaces, UGC Constants tab (Density Input Type is not a UGC 278 Densitometer)



Figure 27(b). Liquid Density Interfaces, UGC Constants tab (Density Input Type is a UGC 278 Densitometer)

Field	Description
Basic Transducer Constants	Sets three transducer constant values KO, K1 & K2 used to calculate the uncorrected density for the UGC densitometer.
Pressure Correction Constants	Sets the calibration pressure (Pc) and three pressure correction constant values (Kp1, Kp2, and Kp3) for the UGC densitometer.

Field	Description
Temperature Correction Constants	Sets the calibration temperature (Tc) and three temperature correction constant values (Kt1, Kt2, and Kt3) for the UGC densitometer.

- **3.** Click **Apply** to save any changes.
- **4.** Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.4.5* to configure the Alarms tab.

3.4.5 Liquid Density Interfaces – Alarms Tab

Use this tab to configure the observed density alarming parameters for a density interface point.

To access this screen:

1. Select the **Alarms** tab on the Liquid Density Interfaces screen. The following screen displays:

👺 ROCLINK 800 - [Liquid Density Interfaces]	
Eile Edit <u>V</u> iew <u>R</u> OC <u>C</u> onfigure <u>M</u> eter <u>U</u> tilities <u>T</u> ools <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	- 8 ×
D 😅 🖬 3, 🖻 🛍 🤩 💷 🍡 9, 9, 9, 14 M 🐜 14, 14 👘 🖻 冬 🕑 🖺 😭 12 💕 2, 19	
Point Number : 1 - Density #1 🚽 Tag: Density #1	<u> </u>
General Inputs Micro Motion Constants UGC Constants Alarms	
Observed Density Alarming High Alarm Limit: 1200.0 Kg/m3	
C Enabled Low Alarm Limit 300.0 Kg/m3	
Alarm Deadband: 5.0 Kg/m3	
_ BBX	
T On Alam Set	
🗂 On Alarm Clear	
Print Save As Auto Scan 😰 Update Close	l Apply
)
ON-LIN	E 11:21 AM

Figure 28. Liquid Density Interfaces, Alarms tab

Field	Description	
Observed Density Alarming	Enables or disables alarming of the observed density. If enabled , alarm status changes are added to the Alarm Log. If disabled , no alarm generates for this density interface point, regardless of the alarm configuration.	
RBX	Enables Report-by-Exception alarm messages. These messages are sent via communication ports that have RBX mode enabled.	
	On Alarm Set	When the observed density value enters the alarm condition, the FB107 generates an RBX message(s).

Field	Description	
	On Alarm Clear	When the observed density value clears the alarm condition, the FB107 generates an RBX message(s).
High Alarm Limit	Sets the value at or above which the value of the observed density must rise to generate a high alarm. The units are those of the Observed Density on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
Low Alarm Limit	Sets the value at or below which the value of the observed density must fall to generate a low alarm. The units are those of the Observed Density on the Liquid Preferences screen.	
Alarm Deadband	Liquid Preferences screen. Sets a value that defines a zone above the Low Alarm Limit and below the High Alarm Limit. When an alarm condition is set, the value of the observed density must clear the alarm limit plus the zone defined by the deadband, before the alarm condition clears. This deadband prevents the system from setting and clearing the alarm continuously when the value of the observed density oscillates around the alarm limit. The units are those of the Observed Density on the Liquid Preferences screen.	

- **3.** Click **Apply** to save any changes.
- **4.** Click **Close** to close this screen. Proceed to *Section 3.5* to save the configuration.

3.5 Saving the Configuration

Whenever you modify or change the configuration, it is a good practice to save the final configuration to memory. To save the configuration:

1. Select **ROC** > **Flags**. The Flags screen displays:

Flags	? 🔀
General Advanced	,
Restart	Flash Memory
Warm Start	Save Configuration
<u>C</u> old Start	Clear
Cold Start & Clear Alarms/Events	Status :
Cold Start & Clear Displays	
Cold Start & Clear F <u>S</u> Ts	
Cold Start & Clear <u>H</u> istory	
Cold Start & Clear A <u>L</u> L	
😰 Update 🛛	OK Cancel Apply

Figure 29. Flags

2. Click Save Configuration. A verification message displays:



Figure 30. Save Verification

3. Click **Yes.** When the save process completes, a confirmation message displays:



Figure 31. Confirmation

- **Note:** Depending on the size and complexity of the user program, this process may take several minutes. When the process ends, the Status field on the Flags screen displays *Completed*.
- **4.** Click **Update** on the Flags screen. This completes the process of saving your new configuration.
- **Note:** For archive purposes, you should also save this configuration to your PC's hard drive or a removable media (such as a diskette or a flash drive) using the **File** > **Save Configuration** option on the ROCLINK 800 menu bar.

[This page is intentionally left blank.]

Chapter 4 – Reference

This section presents tables of ranges of base densities for each of the Liquid Types shown on the Liquid Products screen, discusses how history is handled by the program, and lists the parameters of the user defined points used by the Liquid Allocation program, including the following.

- Point Type 22: Liquid Preferences Point Type
- Point Type 23: Liquid Products Point Type
- Point Type 25: Liquid Meters Point Type
- Point Type 26: Liquid Density Interfaces Point Type

4.1 Density Ranges for Liquid Product Types

The following tables show the ranges of base densities for the types of liquid that can be selected on the Liquid Products screen. Be sure to review the notes for each liquid type when determining which liquid applies to your application.

Crude Oil (Includes Gas Well Condensate)			
Table Version Base Density Range (Kg/m3) Base Density Range (API Gravit			
1980	610 – 1075	0 - 100	
2004	610 – 1165	-10 - 100	

Note: Paraffinic condensate (drip gasoline) from a gas well comprised of butanes, pentanes, hexanes, and heptanes should be considered Crude Oil, provided its base density lies within the range for Crude Oil. Otherwise, it should be considered a Light Hydrocarbon.

Gasoline, Jet Fuel, and Fuel Oil (Refined Products)			
Table Version	Base Density Range (Kg/m3)	Base Density Range (API Gravity)	
1980	650 – 1075	0 – 85	
2004	610 – 1165	-10 - 100	

Notes:

- Aromatic natural gasoline should be considered Gasoline.
- With the 1980 Table, even though one of the refined products is specified as the liquid product type, the program compares the meter run's base density against the ranges listed below and calculates the flowing density based on the product that falls within the range.
 - > 1075 Kg/m3 Invalid Table
 - >= 838.9 Kg/m3 Fuel Oil
 - >= 787.5 Kg/m3 Jet Fuel
 - >= 770.5 Kg/m3 Transition Product

>= 350 Kg/m3 – Gasoline (even though the low range is 650 Kg/m3, the program calculates a flowing density if the base density is greater than or equal to 350 Kg/m3).

- < 350 Kg/m3 Invalid Table
- With the 2004 Table, even though one of the refined products is specified as the liquid product type, the program compares the meter run's base density against the ranges listed below and calculates the flowing density based on the product that falls within the range.
 - > 1163.5 Kg/m3 Invalid Table
 - >= 838.3 Kg/m3 Fuel Oil
 - >= 787.5 Kg/m3 Jet Fuel
 - >= 770.4 Kg/m3 Transition Product

>= 350 Kg/m3 – Gasoline (even though the low range is 650 Kg/m3, the program calculates a flowing density if the base density is greater than or equal to 350 Kg/m3).

< 350 Kg/m3 – Invalid Table

Lube Oil									
Table Version Base Density Range (Kg/m3) Base Density Range (API 0)									
1980	800 – 1165	-10 – 45							
2004 800 - 1165 -10 - 45									
Note: A Lube Oil is derived from a crude oil fraction by distillation or asphalt precipitation.									

Special Application (User Specified Alpha)									
Table Version Base Density Range (Kg/m3) Base Density Range (API G									
1980	610 – 1165	-10 - 100							
2004	610 – 1165	-10 – 100							
Note: The valid range of	Note: The valid range of the coefficient of thermal expansion (Alpha) is:								
230.0 x 10 ⁻⁶ to 930.0 x 10 ⁻⁶ volume fraction per Deg F									
414.0 x 10 ⁻⁶ to 1674.0 x 10 ⁻⁶ volume fraction per Deg C									

Light Hydrocarbon (Includes LPG and NGL)										
Table Version Base Density Range (Kg/m3) Base Density Range (API Gravity)										
TP-27	350 – 690	70 – 275								
Note: A LPG (Liquified Petroleum Gas) or NGL (Natural Gas Liquid) comprised of predominately propane and butane should be considered a Light Hydrocarbon, provided its base density lies within the range for Light Hydrocarbon. Otherwise, it should be considered a Crude Oil.										

Water								
Table Version Temperature Range (deg F) Density at 60 deg C								
API 11.4.1 2003	33 – 104	999.016 kg/m3						

4.2 Liquid Allocation History

For many liquid measurement use cases, it is desirable to calculate hourly and daily flow weighted averages for the process variables (such as temperature, pressure, and density). The Liquid Allocation Program can be used to archive weighted averages in history for a limited set of liquid meter values. When these parameters are configured in the FB107 standard history, the program overrides the typical firmware history mechanism. The program calculates the flow weighted average using the indicated volume. The program performs weighted averages regardless of the archive type you select on the History Setup screen. The following parameters are supported for this feature:

Note: If additional parameters for the Liquid Allocation Program point types are added, they will not be correctly calculated as a flow weighted average.

Parameter Name	Archive Point
Observed Temperature (density)	Liquid Density Interface (26,X,6)
Flowing Temperature (meter)	Liquid Meter (25,X,25)
Observed Pressure (density)	Liquid Density Interface (26,X,8)
Flowing Pressure (meter)	Liquid Meter (25,X,24)
Meter Factor	Liquid Meters (25,0,15)
Observed Density	Liquid Density Interface (26,X,3)
Base Density	Liquid Meters (25,0,19)
Flowing Density (Meter)	Flowing Density (25,0,18)

4.2.1 Typical History Setup

A typical configuration for the history setup for the first Liquid Allocation Program meter is shown below:

Note: The Archive Type implies that a linear average is being recorded; however, the program overrides this selection and stores a flow weighted average which is displayed when the daily or hourly history is retrieved.

🗉 History Setup								
Standard History Extended History Setup								
Point	Archive Type	Archive Point	User Text 🔺					
1	Avg - Linear	26, 0, 6	Obs Temp					
2	Avg - Linear	25, 0, 25	Mtr Temp					
3	Avg - Linear	26, 0, 8	Obs Press					
4	Avg - Linear	25, 0, 24	Mtr Press					
5	Avg - Linear	25, 0, 15	Mtr Factor					
6	Avg - Linear	26, 0, 3	Obs Dens					
7	Avg - Linear	25, 0, 19	Base Dens					
8	Avg - Linear	25, 0, 18	Mtr Dens					
9	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
10	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
11	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
12	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
13	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
14	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
15	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
16	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
17	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
18	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
19	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
20	Undefined	0, 0, 0						
21	Undefined	0, 0, 0	-					
∐iz	ard 🚺 Upda	ate 🗸 OK 🗙 Car	ncel <u>Apply</u>					

Figure 32. Typical History Setup

[This page is intentionally left blank.]

4.3 Point Type 22: Liquid Preference Parameters

Point type 22 contains the parameters for configuring the units and viewing the program status. There is one logical for this point type.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
0	Differential Pressure Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 3$	0	Engineering units for differential pressure values:
							0 = InH2O 1 = kPa 2 = mBar 3 = mmH2O
1	Pressure Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 3$	0	Engineering units for pressure values. Flowing pressure units are in gauge or absolute depending on the selection for the meter (TLP=25,meter logical,120, Bit 1). The atmospheric pressure units are always absolute.
							0 = Psi 1 = kPa 2 = Bar 3 = Kg/cm2
2	Temperature Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Engineering units for temperature values:
							0 = Deg F 1 = Deg C
3	Observed Density Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 6$	0	Engineering units for the observed density determined by a density interface point.
							0 = Kg/m3 1 = g/cc 2 = Lb/ft3 3 = Lb/bbl 4 = Lb/gal 5 = Relative Density 6 = API Gravity

Point Type 22: Liquid Preferences Parameters

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
4	Length Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Engineering units for length (orifice and plate diameters):
							0 = Inch 1 = millimeter
5	Viscosity Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Engineering units for viscosity of the liquids:
							0 = Lb/ft-sec 1 = Cp (centipoise)
6	Volume Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 6$	0	Engineering units for volume values:
							0 = Bbl 1 = Mcf 2 = Km3 3 = Gal (US) 4 = ft3 5 = m3 6 = Liter
7	Mass Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 4$	0	Engineering units for mass values:
							0 = Lb 1 = Kg 2 = Ton (short) 3 = Tonne (1000 kg) 4 = Mlb
8	Flowrate Time Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 3$	0	Time units for flow rates:
							0 = Per day 1 = Per hour 2 = Per minute 3 = Per second
9	Program Status	R/O	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 2$	0	Current status of the Liquid Allocation program:
							1 = Program running 2 = License key not available

Point Type 22: Liquid Preferences Parameters

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
10	Product and Meter Density Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 2$	0	Engineering units for densities of the product and meter point types:
							0 = Kg/m3 1 = Relative Density 2 = API Gravity
11	Accumulation Rollover Value	RO	FL	4	> 0.0	1000000	Rollover value for all of the continuous totalizers.
12	Elevation Units	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Engineering units for elevation:
							0 = Feet 1 = Meter

Point Type 22: Liquid Preferences Parameters

4.4 Point Type 23: Liquid Product Parameters

Point type 23 contains the parameters for configuring the liquid products. There are two logicals for this point type.

Point Type 23: Liquid Product Parameters

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
0	Point Tag Id	R/W	AC	10	10 ASCII characters	Logical 0: "Product #1"	Point tag identification for the product.
						Logical 1: "Product #2"	
1	Liquid Type	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 9$	0	Indicates the type of liquid for this product:
							0 = Crude Oil 1 = Gasoline 2 = Jet Fuel 3 = Fuel Oil 4 = Lube Oil 5 = Special Application (User Entered Alpha) 6 = Light Hydrocarbon 7 = Water 8 = Used Internally for Transition 9 = Invalid Product
2	API Standard Version	R/W	UINT8	1	$1 \rightarrow 2$	2	Indicates the version of the API MPMS Chapter 11.1 standard to use:
							1 = 1980 2 = 2004
3	Light Hydrocarbon Standard Version	R/W	UINT8	1	3	3	Indicates the standard to use to calculate the temperature correction factor for light hydrocarbons:
							3 = GPA TP-27
Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
-----------	------------------------	--------	--------------	--------	-------------------	---------	--
4	Compressibility Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 3$	0	Indicates the method to use for calculating the product's compressibility:
							 0 = Program determines the method based on the density of the product and units of the base temperature. 1 = API 11.2.1 or API 11.2.1(M) calculation 2 = API 11.2.2 or API 11.2.2(M) calculation 3 = User entered compressibility. This selection is only valid if the 1980 version of the API MPMS Chapter 11.1 standard is selected (parameter #2 is set to 1).
5	Compressibility Factor	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.349	User specified value of the compressibility (F) for adjusting the volume from the base to the flowing pressure. This value is used only if the user entered compressibility is selected (parameter #4 is set to 3).
							 If the base temperature is 60 Deg F: Units are 10^5 times the volume fraction pressure unit. If the base temperature is 15, 20, or 30 Deg C: Units are 10^6 times the volume fraction per pressure unit.
6	Alpha Coefficient	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.3418	User entered alpha coefficient. This value is used only if the fluid type selected (parameter #2) is Special Applications (2). The units are volume fraction per temperature increment. The units of the temperature increment are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
7	Base Density	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	999.016	Density of the product at base temperature and pressure. Density units are specified by TLP=22,0,10.

Point Type 23: Liquid Product Parameters

Point type 25 contains the parameters for configuring the liquid meters and viewing the results of the calculations. There are two logicals for this point type.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
0	Point Tag Id	R/W	AC	10	10 ASCII characters	Logical 0: "Liq Mtr #1" Logical 1: "Liq Mtr #2	Point tag identification.
1	Point Description	R/W	AC	30	30 ASCII characters	" "	Description of the liquid meter.
2	Liquid Product Point	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	The liquid product point (0-based,point type 23) assigned to the liquid meter.
3	Meter Units Type	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Indicates the type of units for the flow meter input. This is only used with linear meters.
							0 = Volume 1 = Mass
4	Reserved	R/W	UINT8	1	0	0	Reserved
5	Reserved	R/W	UINT8	1	0	0	Reserved
6	Reserved	R/W	FL	1	0	0	Reserved
7	Alarming Option	R/W	UINT8	1	0 → 5	0	 If enabled, the indicated parameter for the liquid meter is compared to the alarm limits, and the alarm statuses set and cleared accordingly. 0 = Disabled 1 = Enabled for Indicated Volume Flowrate (parameter #27) 2 = Enabled for Gross Volume Flowrate (parameter #29) 3 = Enabled for Gross Standard Volume Flowrate (parameter #31) 4 = Enabled for Net Standard Volume Flowrate (parameter #33) 5 = Enabled for Mass Elowrate (parameter #35)

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
8	RBX on Clear	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Enable/disable status for an RBX alarm when an alarm condition clears:
							0 = RBX on Clear Disabled 1 = RBX on Clear Enabled
9	RBX on Set	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Enable/disable status for an RBX alarm when an alarm condition gets set:
							0 = RBX on Set Disabled 1 = RBX on Set Enabled
10	Alarm Code	R/O	BIN	1	_	0x00	Alarm statuses:
							Bit 7 – Manual mode status.
							 0 = No flow inputs for the flow calculation is a manual entry. 1 = At least one input for the flow calculation is a manual entry.
							Bit 6 – No flow alarm status. No flow occurs when the flowrate specified by parameter #7 is 0.0.
							0 = No flow alarm status is clear. 1 = No flow alarm status is set.
							Bit 5 – Reserved
							Bit 4 – Reserved.
							Bit 3 – Reserved
							Bit 2 – High flowrate alarm status. The value of the flowrate is that specified by parameter #7.
							0 = High flow rate alarm status is clear. 1 = High flow rate alarm status is set.
							Bit 1 – Reserved.
							Bit 0 – Low flowrate alarm status. The value of the flowrate is that specified by parameter #7.
							0 = Low flow rate alarm status is clear. 1 = High flow rate alarm status is set.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
11	Low Alarm Flow	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	-1000.0	Value of the low flow alarm limit in the units of the selected flowrate for alarming (see parameter #7).
12	High Alarm Flow	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	100000.0	Value of the high flow alarm limit in the units of the selected flowrate for alarming (see parameter #7).
13	Alarm Deadband	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	100.0	Value that the selected flowrate for alarming (see parameter #7) must be above the low alarm limit (parameter #11) or below the high alarm limit (parameter #12) before the associated alarm clears.
14	K-Factor	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If the meter input is a PI point, this is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses/unit volume or pulses/unit mass. If a K-Factor curve is being used (parameter #42), this is equal to the current value of the K-Factor.
							If the meter is not a PI point : Not used.
15	Meter Factor	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Value obtained by dividing the quantity of fluid measured by the proving system by the quantity indicated by the meter during proving.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
16	Density Interface Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 2$	0	Specifies if a density interface point is assigned to the liquid meter. If a density interface point is assigned, the base density for the liquid meter is determined from the observed density. Otherwise, the base density of the product assigned to the liquid meter is used.
							 0 = No density interface point is assigned to the liquid meter so use the base density specified by parameter #7 of the liquid product assigned to the meter (parameter #2). Then, the flowing density is calculated using the base density and flowing temperature and pressure.
							 1 = A density interface point is assigned to the liquid meter (parameter #17), but the observed density is not the density at the liquid meter. So, the liquid meter's base density is to be calculated using the observed density and the liquid meter's base temperature and equilibrium or base pressure. Then, the flowing density is calculated using the base density and flowing temperature and pressure.
							2 = A density interface point is assigned to the liquid meter (parameter #17), and the observed density is the density at the liquid meter. So, the liquid meter's base density is to be calculated using the observed density and the liquid meter's base temperature and equilibrium or base pressure. The flowing density is set to the value of the observed density.
17	Density Interface Point	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Specifies the density interface point assigned to the liquid meter. It is used if the density interface option (parameter #16) is not equal to 0.
18	Flowing Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	999.016	Flowing density for the meter, in the density units specified by TLP=22,0,10.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
19	Base Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	999.016	Density of the liquid at the base temperature and base or equilibrium pressure, in the density units specified by TLP=22,0,10.
20	Flow Input TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0,0,0	TLP for the uncorrected flowrate from the meter.
21	Static Pressure TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0,0,0	TLP for the static pressure.
22	Temperature TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0,0,0	TLP for the flowing temperature.
23	S&W TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0,0,0	TLP for the percent of sediment and water (S&W).
24	Static Pressure Value	R/W	FL	4	_	0.0	Value of the flowing pressure, in units specified by TLP=22,0,1.
25	Temperature Value	R/W	FL	4	_	0.0	Value of the flowing temperature, in units specified by TLP=22,0,2.
26	S&W Value	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Percentage by volume of the sediment and water (S&W) in the liquid.
27	Indicated Flowrate (Volume or Mass)	Indicated Flowrate (Volume or R/W Mass)	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
							Indicated volume flowrate through the meter. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							Indicated mass flowrate through the meter. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
							If the liquid meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							sqrt(hw). If the flow input is less than or equal to the differential pressure for low flow cutoff (parameter #112), hw is set to 0.0. The units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
28	Indicated Flow Totalizer (Volume or Mass)	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the indicated flow. The value rolls over when it exceeds 1000000.0.
							If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
							Total indicated volume through the meter. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
							If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							Total indicated mass through the meter. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							Total of sqrt(hw). Units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
29	Gross Volume Flowrate	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Gross volume flowrate as indicated by the meter. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
30	Gross Volume Totalizer	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the gross volume flow. The value rolls over when it exceeds 1000000.0. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
31	Gross Standard Volume Flowrate	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Volume flowrate at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
32	Gross Standard Volume Totalizer	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the volume flow at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
33	Net Standard Volume Flowrate	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Volume flowrate at base conditions corrected for non-merchantable quantities such as sediment and water. Applies to crude oil only. For other liquid products, it is identical to gross standard volume flowrate. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
34	Net Standard Volume Totalizer	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the volume flow at base conditions corrected for non-merchantable quantities such as sediment and water. Applies to crude oil only. For other liquid products, it is identical to the gross standard volume total. The value rolls over when it exceeds 1000000.0. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
35	Mass Flowrate	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Mass flowrate. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
36	Mass Totalizer	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the mass flow. The value rolls over when it exceeds 1000000.0. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
37	Correction for Temperature of the Liquid (CTL)	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Factor for adjusting the base density to the flowing density due to difference between the base and flowing temperatures.
38	Correction for Pressure of the Liquid (CPL)	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Factor for adjusting the base density to the flowing density due to the difference between the base or equilibrium pressure and the flowing pressure.
39	Combined Correction Factor (CCF)	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	CTL x CPL x Meter Factor.
40	Compressibility Factor (F)	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.3494896	Compressibility factor of the liquid when adjusting the volume at the base or equilibrium pressure to the flowing pressure. If the base temperature is 60 Deg F, the units are 10^5 times the volume fraction per pressure unit. If the base temperature is 15, 20, or 30 Deg C, the units are 10^6 times the volume fraction per pressure unit. The pressure units are specified by TLP=22,0,1.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
41	Alpha for Base to Flowing Temperature	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.3417773	Coefficient of thermal expansion used when adjusting the volume at the base temperature to the flowing temperature. The units are 10 ³ times the volume fraction per Deg F or Deg C, depending on the selected temperature units. The units of the temperature increment are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
42	Meter Factor / K-Factor Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 2$	0	Option indicating the use of either a single K- Factor or the K-Factor table with interpolation between points:
							0 = Single K-Factor, Single Meter Factor 1 = Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor 2 = K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor
43	Meter Factor 1 / K-Factor 1	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
44	Meter Factor 1 Flowrate / K- Factor 1 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
45	Meter Factor 2 / K-Factor 2	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter #42 = 2), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter #42 = 1) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
46	Meter Factor 2 Flowrate / K- Factor 2 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
47	Meter Factor 3 / K-Factor 3	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
48	Meter Factor 3 Flowrate / K- Factor 3 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
49	Meter Factor 4 / K-Factor 4	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
50	Meter Factor 4 Flowrate / K- Factor 4 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
51	Meter Factor 5 / K-Factor 5	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
52	Meter Factor 5 Flowrate / K- Factor 5 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
53	Meter Factor 6 / K-Factor 6	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$) this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
54	Meter Factor 6 Flowrate / K- Factor 6 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
55	Meter Factor 7 / K-Factor 7	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
56	Meter Factor 7 Flowrate / K- Factor 7 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
57	Meter Factor 8 / K-Factor 8	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
58	Meter Factor 8 Flowrate / K- Factor 8 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
59	Meter Factor 9 / K-Factor 9	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
60	Meter Factor 9 Flowrate / K- Factor 9 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
61	Meter Factor 10 / K-Factor 10	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
62	Meter Factor 10 Flowrate / K- Factor 10 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
63	Meter Factor 11 / K-Factor 11	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.
64	Meter Factor 11 Flowrate / K- Factor 11 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
65	Meter Factor 12 / K-Factor 12	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the meter constant (K-Factor) in pulses / unit of flow input for the associated frequency in Hz. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the dimensionless meter factor (MF) for the associated indicated flowrate.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
66	Meter Factor 12 Flowrate / K- Factor 12 Frequency	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If a K-Factor Curve, Single Meter Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 2$), this parameter is the frequency in Hz that corresponds with the associated K-Factor. If a Meter Factor Curve, Single K-Factor has been selected (parameter $#42 = 1$), this parameter is the indicated flowrate that corresponds to the associated meter factor.
67	S&W Flowrate	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Volume flowrate of non-merchantable quantities such as sediment and water. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
68	S&W Volume Total	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Continuous totalizer of the volume flow of non- merchantable quantities such as sediment and water. The value rolls over when it exceeds 1000000.0. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
69	Indicated Flow Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the indicated flow.
							If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume: Total so far today of the indicated volume. The volume units are specified by TLP=22.0.6.
							If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							Total so far today of the indicated mass. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Total so far today of sqrt(hw). Units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
70	Gross Volume Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the gross volume flow. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
71	Gross Standard Volume Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the volume flow at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.

Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
Net Standard Volume Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the volume flow at base conditions minus the non-merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
S&W Volume Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the volume flow of non- merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
Mass Today	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far today of the mass flow. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
Indicated Volume Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total indicated flow.
						If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
						Yesterday's total indicated volume. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
						If the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
						Yesterday's total indicated mass. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
						Yesterday's total of sqrt(hw). Units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
Gross Volume Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total gross volume flow. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
Gross Standard Volume Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total volume flow at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
Net Standard Volume Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total volume flow at base conditions minus the non-merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
S&W Volume Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total volume flow of non- merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
Mass Yesterday	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Yesterday's total mass flow. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
	Name Net Standard Volume Today S&W Volume Today Mass Today Indicated Volume Yesterday Indicated Volume Yesterday Gross Volume Yesterday Gross Standard Volume Yesterday Net Standard Volume Yesterday S&W Volume Yesterday Mass Yesterday	NameAccessNet Standard Volume TodayR/OS&W Volume TodayR/OMass TodayR/OIndicated Volume YesterdayR/OGross Volume YesterdayR/OGross Standard VolumeR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OS&W Volume YesterdayR/OMass YesterdayR/O	NameAccessData TypeNet Standard Volume TodayR/OFLS&W Volume TodayR/OFLMass TodayR/OFLIndicated Volume YesterdayR/OFLGross Volume YesterdayR/OFLGross Standard VolumeR/OFLS&W Volume YesterdayR/OFLS&W Volume YesterdayR/OFLS&W Volume YesterdayR/OFLS&W Volume YesterdayR/OFLS&W Volume YesterdayR/OFLMass YesterdayR/OFL	NameAccessData TypeLengthNet Standard Volume TodayR/OFL4S&W Volume TodayR/OFL4Mass TodayR/OFL4Indicated Volume YesterdayR/OFL4Gross Volume YesterdayR/OFL4Gross Standard VolumeR/OFL4S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4Gross Standard VolumeR/OFL4S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4Mass YesterdayR/OFL4	NameAccess TypeData TypeLengthRangeNet Standard Volume TodayR/OFL4>= 0.0S&W Volume TodayR/OFL4>= 0.0Mass TodayR/OFL4>= 0.0Indicated Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0Gross Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0Gross Standard Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0Net Standard Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0Mass YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0Mass YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.0	NameAccess TypeData TypeLengthRangeDefaultNet Standard Volume TodayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0S&W Volume TodayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Mass TodayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Indicated Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Gross Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Gross Standard Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Net Standard Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0S&W Volume YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0Mass YesterdayR/OFL4>= 0.00.0

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
81	Indicated Flow This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the indicated flow.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
							This month's total of the indicated volume flow. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							This month's total of the indicated mass flow. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							This month's total of sqrt(hw). Units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
82	Gross Volume This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the gross volume flow. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
83	Gross Standard Volume This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the volume flow at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
84	Net Standard Volume This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the volume flow at base conditions minus the non-merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
85	S&W Volume This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the volume flow of non- merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
86	Mass This Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Total so far this month of the mas flow. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
87	Indicated Flow Previous Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total indicated flow.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
							Previous month's total indicated volume flow. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							Previous month's total indicated mass flow. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							Previous month's total of sqrt(hw). Units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
88	Gross Volume Previous Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total gross volume. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
89	Gross Standard Volume Previous Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total volume at base conditions. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
90	Net Standard Volume Previous Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total volume at base conditions minus the non-merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
91	S&W Volume Previous Month	R/O	FL	8	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total volume of non- merchantable quantities. The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6.
92	Mass Previous Month	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Previous month's total mass. The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
93	Meter uncorrected flowrate	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Flow input of the liquid meter.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is volume:
							Indicated volume flowrate through the meter. This value matches that of the indicated flowrate (parameter #27). The volume units are specified by TLP=22,0,6, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the type of units of the liquid meter flow input (parameter #3) is mass:
							Indicated mass flowrate through the meter. This value matches that of the indicated flowrate (parameter #27). The mass units are specified by TLP=22,0,7, and the time units are specified by TLP=22,0,8.
							If the liquid meter type (parameter #104) is orifice this value is before the low differential flow cutoff is applied:
							sqrt(hw). The units are sqrt of the units specified by TLP=22,0,0.
94	CSW	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	The correction factor due to non-merchantable quantities, such as sediment and water. It is one (1) minus the volumetric fraction of merchantable quantities in the liquid.
95	Combined Correction Factor (CTPL) When Determining the Flowing Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	The combined correction factor for adjusting the volumetric flow from the base temperature and pressure to the flowing temperature and pressure:
							CTPL = CTL * CPL

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
96	Correction for Temperature of the Liquid (CTL) When Determining the Base Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0346	Factor for adjusting the volume of the liquid from the observed temperature to the base temperature. This value gets set whenever the base density for the meter is to be determined from the observed density of a density interface point.
97	Correction for Pressure of the Liquid (CPL) When Determining the Base Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Factor for adjusting the volume of the liquid from the observed pressure to the base or equilibrium pressure. This value gets set whenever the base density for a meter is to be determined from from the observed density of a density interface point.
98	Compressibility Factor (F) When Determining the Base Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Compressibility factor used to determine the base density from the observed density. This value gets set whenever the base density for the meter is to be determined from the observed density of a density interface point, and the temperature correction table includes adjustment for the difference between the observed and base pressure when determining the base density from the observed density. This only applies in the case of the API 11.1.6 (2004) and API 11.1.7 (2004) tables. If the base temperature is 60 Deg F, the units are 10^5 times the volume fraction per pressure unit. If the base temperature is 15, 20, or 30 Deg C, the units are 10^6 times the volume fraction per pressure units are specified by TLP=22,0,1.
99	Base Temperature Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 4$	0	Reference temperature for the base volume. 0 = 60 Deg F 1 = Reserved 2 = 15 Deg C 3 = 20 Deg C 4 = 30 Deg C
100	Base Temperature Value	R/O	FL	4	60.0, 15.0, 20.0, or 30.0	60.0	4 = 30 Deg C This parameter displays the numeric value of the base temperature selected by the base temperature option (parameter #99). Units are Deg F or Deg C depending on the value of parameter #90

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
101	Base/Equilibrium Pressure	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	Base or equilibrium (bubble point) pressure for the current product in gauge pressure units specified by TLP=22,0,1. The equilibrium pressure is the minimum pressure at which bubbles of gas appear in a liquid.

Point Type	25: Liq	uid Meter	Parameters
------------	---------	-----------	------------

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
102	Temperature Correction Table	R/O	UINT8	1	0 → 34, 99	4	Temperature correction table used to calculate the flowing density, which is calculated using the even numbered table, where applicable. If the base density is calculated from the observed density, the odd numbered table is utilized, where applicable. (* Denotes the base density had to be converted to units that match that of the table).
							0 = API 2540 Table 5/6A (1980) 1 = API 2540 Table 5/6B (1980) 2 = API 2540 Table 5/6D (1982) 3 = API 2540 Table 23/24A (1980) 5 = API 2540 Table 23/24B (1980) 6 = API 2540 Table 23/24B (1980) 6 = API 2540 Table 23/24D (1982) 7 = GPA TP-27 23/24E (2007) 8 = API 2540 Table 53/54A (1980) 10 = API 2540 Table 53/54B (1980) 11 = API 2540 Table 53/54B (1980) 11 = API 2540 Table 53/54E (2007) 13 = API 2540 Table 53/54E (2007) 13 = API 2540 Table 54C (1980) 14 = IP-3 Table 59/60A (1988) 15 = IP-3 Table 59/60B (1988) 16 = IP-3 Table 59/60B (1988) 17 = GPA TP-27 Table 59/60E (2007) 18 = API 11.1.6 (2004) 19 = API 11.1.7 (2004) 20 = API 2540 Table 23/24A* (1980) 21 = API 2540 Table 23/24B* (1980) 22 = API 2540 Table 23/24E* (2007) 24 = API 2540 Table 23/24E* (2007) 24 = API 2540 Table 23/54A* (1980) 25 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 26 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 27 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 30 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 31 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 32 = API 2540 Table 53/54B* (1980) 33 = GPA TP-27 Table 59/60A* (1980) 34 = API 2540 Table 59/60B* (1982) 33 = GPA TP-27 Table 59/60B* (1982) 34 = API 2540 Table 59/60B* (1982) 35 = API 2540 Table 59/60B* (1980) 31 = API 2540 Table 59/60B* (1980) 32 = API 2540 Table 59/60B* (1980) 33 = GPA TP-27 Table 59/60B* (1980) 34 = API 11.4.1 (2003) 99 = Invalid Table

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
103	Pressure Correction Table	R/O	UINT8	1	0 → 7, 99	1	Pressure correction table used to calculate the flowing density.
							0 = User compressibility 1 = API Table 11.2.1 2 = API Table 11.2.1M 3 = API Table 11.2.2 4 = API Table 11.2.2M 5 = API Procedure 11.1.6 (2004) 6 = API Procedure 11.1.7 (2004) 7 = API 11.4.1 (2003) 99 = Invalid Table
104	Meter Type	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Type of meter:
							0 = Linear 1 = Orifice with flange taps – uses ISO5167
105	Nominal Pipe Diameter	R/W	FL	4	> 0.0	8.071	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							Pipe internal diameter at the pipe reference temperature. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,4.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
106	Pipe Reference Temperature	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	68.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Reference temperature for the orifice diameter measurement. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
107	Pipe Material	R/W	UINT8	1	0 → 2	2	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
							Pipe material: 0 = Stainless Steel (304 or 316) 1 = Monel 2 = Carbon Steel
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
108	Nominal Orifice Diameter	R/W	FL	4	> 0.0	4.000	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Orifice diameter at the orifice reference temperature. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,4.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
109	Orifice Reference Temperature	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	68.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Reference temperature for the orifice diameter measurement. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
110	Orifice Material	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 2$	0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Orifice material: 0 = Stainless Steel (304 or 316) 1 = Monel 2 = Carbon Steel
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
111	Viscosity	R/W	FL	4	> 0.0	4.0E-04	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Absolute flowing viscosity. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,5.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.

Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
Low Differential Pressure Cutoff	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
						Differential pressure at or below which the flowrate is set to 0.0. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,0.
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the flow input is not a pulse input:
						Flow input value below which the flowrate is set to 0.0. The units are the specified volume or mass units depending on the type of units of the flow meter (TLP=25,x,3).
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the flow input is a pulse input:
						Not used.
Expansion Factor	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Meter expansion factor (Y1).
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
Coefficient of Discharge	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Coefficient of discharge (CdFT).
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
Actual Orifice Diameter	R/O	FL	4	> 0.0	4.000	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Orifice diameter at the flowing temperature. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,4.
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
Actual Pipe Diameter	R/O	FL	4	> 0.0	8.071	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice:
						Pipe diameter at the flowing temperature. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,4.
						If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
	Name Low Differential Pressure Cutoff Expansion Factor Expansion Factor Coefficient of Discharge Actual Orifice Diameter Actual Pipe Diameter	NameAccessLow Differential Pressure CutoffR/WStateR/OExpansion FactorR/OCoefficient of DischargeR/OActual Orifice DiameterR/OActual Pipe DiameterR/O	NameAccessData TypeLow Differential Pressure CutoffR/WFLExpansion FactorR/OFLCoefficient of DischargeR/OFLActual Orifice DiameterR/OFLActual Pipe DiameterR/OFL	NameAccessData TypeLengthLow Differential Pressure CutoffR/WFL4KKKKKKExpansion FactorR/OFL4Coefficient of DischargeR/OFL4Actual Orifice DiameterR/OFL4Actual Pipe DiameterR/OFL4	NameAccess Pate TypeDate LengthRangeLow Differential Pressure CutoffR/WFL4>= 0.0Expansion FactorR/OFL4>= 0.0Coefficient of DischargeR/OFL4>= 0.0Actual Orifice DiameterR/OFL4>= 0.0Actual Pipe DiameterR/OFL4>0.0	NameAccessData TypeLengthRangeDefaultLow Differential Pressure CutoffR/WFL4>= 0.01.0KKKKKKKKExpansion FactorR/OFL4>= 0.01.0Coefficient of DischargeR/OFL4>= 0.01.0Actual Orifice DiameterR/OFL4>= 0.04.000Actual Pipe DiameterR/OFL4>0.08.071

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
117	Actual Beta	R/O	FL	4	> 0.0	0.4956	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Beta at the flowing temperature.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
118	Velocity of Approach	R/O	FL	4	> 0.0	1.03	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Velocity of approach (Ev) at the flowing temperature.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
119	Reynolds Number	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.00	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Pipe Reynolds number (ReD) at flowing conditions.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear: Not used.
120	Configuration Statuses	R/W	BIN	1	_	0x00	Configuration statuses:
							Bit 7 – Not used.
							Bit 6 – Not used
							Bit 5 – Not used.
							Bit 4 – Not used.
							Bit 3 – Not used.
							Bit 2 – Atmospheric pressure source: 0: Calculate based on the elevation 1: Manual entry
							Bit 1 – Pressure reference: 0: Gauge 1: Absolute
							Bit 0 – Pressure tap location (orifice meters only): 0: Downstream 1: Upstream

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
121	Atmospheric Pressure	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	14.73	Atmospheric pressure at the meter location. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,1.
122	Elevation	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	500	Elevation of the meter. The units are specified by TLP=22,0,13.
123	Request Recalculation Status	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Request recalculation status. When the recalculation for a meter run is requested, recalculation of all meter runs is performed :
							0 = Recaculation is not requested.1 = Recalculation is requested.
124	Observed Density in Observed Density Units	R/O	FL	1	> 0.0	999.016	Average observed density during the previous mcp. The units are those specified for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3).
125	Observed Density in Base and Flowing Density Units	R/O	FL	1	> 0.0	999.016	Average observed density during the previous mcp. The units are those specified for the base and flowing densities (TLP=22,0,11).
126	Alpha for Observed to Base Temperature	R/O	FL	1	> 0.0	0.3417773	Coefficient of thermal expansion used when adjusting the volume at the observed temperature to the base temperature. The units are 10^3 times the volume fraction per Deg F or Deg C, depending on the selected temperature units. The units of the temperature increment are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
127	Average Observed Temperature	R/O	FL	4	Any floating point number	60	Average observed temperature during the previous mcp. The units of the temperature are specified by TLP=22,0,2.
128	Average Observed Pressure	R/O	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	Average observed pressure during the previous mcp. The units of the pressure are specified by TLP=22,0,1.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
129	No Flow Time	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 255$	10	If the meter type (parameter #104) is orifice: Not used.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the flow input is not a pulse input: Not used.
							If the meter type (parameter #104) is linear and the flow input is a pulse input:
							Time, in seconds, without a pulse before setting the flow rate to 0.0.
130	Flowing Status	R/O	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Current flowing status:
							0 = Currently there is no flow through the meter.
							1 = Currently there is flow through the meter.

4.6 **Point Type 26: Density Interface Parameters**

Point type 26 contains the parameters for configuring the density interface points and viewing the results of the calculations. There are two logicals for this point type.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
0	Point Tag Id	R/W	AC	10	10 ASCII characters	Logical 0: "Density #1"	Point tag identification for the density interface point.
						Logical 1: "Density #2	
1	Density Type	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 3$	3	Indicates the type of density input interface: 0 = Micro Motion (or Solartron) Model 7830/40 or Model 7835/45/46/47 1 = Reserved 2 = UGC 278 3 = Analog input – The units of the density input are assumed to be that specified for the observed density units (TLP=22,0,3).
2	Density Input TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0, 0, 0	TLP from which to retrieve the density input. The input may either be a frequency from a densitometer or an analog density value from any source.
3	Density Input Value	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	999.012	Value of the density input. If the density input is a frequency from a densitometer, this value contains the frequency in Hz. Otherwise; it contains the density input value in the units specified for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3).

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
4	Alarm Config Statuses	R/W	UINT8	1	_	0	Alarm configuration statuses:
							Bit 7 – Reserved
							Bit 6 – RBX on alarm set: 0 = Disabled, 1 = Enabled
							Bit 5 – RBX on alarm clear: 0 = Disabled, 1 = Enabled
							Bit 4 – Alarming: 0 = Disabled, 1 = Enabled
							Bit 3 – Reserved
							Bit 2 – Reserved
							Bit 1 – Reserved
							Bit 0 – Reserved
5	Observed Temperature TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0, 0, 0	TLP of the temperature at the density measurement location (observed temperature).
6	Observed Temperature	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	60.0	Value of the temperature at the density measurement location (observed temperature), in the temperature units specified by TLP=22,0,2.
7	Observed Pressure TLP	R/W	TLP	3	TLP	0, 0, 0	TLP for the pressure at the density measurement location (observed pressure).
8	Observed Pressure	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	Value of pressure at the density measurement location measurement site (observed pressure), in the pressure units specified by TLP=22,0,1.
9	Basic Transducer Constant K0	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	Constant K0 from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) or UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the general density calculation.

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
10	Basic Transducer Constant K1	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	Constant K1 from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) or UGC densitometer. This program uses this constant in the general density calculation.
11	Basic Transducer Constant K2	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	Constant K2 from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) or UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the general density calculation.
12	Micro Motion Temperature Correction Constant K18	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K18 from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation. Otherwise:
13	Micro Motion Temperature Correction Constant K19	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K19 from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used
14	Micro Motion Pressure Correction Constant K20A	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K20A from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
15	Micro Motion Pressure Correction Constant K20B	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K20B from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation.
							Otherwise: Not used
16	Micro Motion Pressure Correction Constant K21A	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K21A from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise:
17	Micro Motion Pressure Correction	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point	0.0	Not used If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or
	Constant K21B				number		Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0): Constant K21B from the calibration certificate of the Micro Motion (or Solartron) densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
18	Velocity of Sound Compensation Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0):
							Velocity of sound compensation enable status:
							0: Disabled 1: Enabled
							Otherwise:
							Not used
19	Liquid Velocity of Sound	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter #1 is set to 0):
							Actual velocity of sound in the liquid at flowing conditions in meters per second.
							Otherwise:
							Not used
20	Calibration Velocity of Sound	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	0.0	If the densitometer type is Micro Motion (or Solartron) (parameter 1 is set to 0):
							Velocity of sound in the liquid at the calibration conditions, in meter per seconds.
							Otherwise:
							Not used
21	UGC Pressure Correction Constant Pc	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2):
							Constant Pc from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation.
							Otherwise:
							Not used

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
22	UGC Pressure Correction Constant Kp1	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2): Constant Kp1 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used
23	UGC Pressure Correction Constant Kp2	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2): Constant Kp2 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used
24	UGC Pressure Correction Constant Kp3	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2): Constant Kp3 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the pressure compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used
25	UGC Temperature Correction Constant Tc	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2): Constant Tc from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation. Otherwise: Not used

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
26	UGC Temperature Correction Constant Kt1	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2):
							Constant Kt1 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation.
							Otherwise: Not used
27	UGC Temperature Correction Constant Kt2	R/W	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2):
							Constant Kt2 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation.
							Otherwise: Not used
28	UGC Temperature Correction Constant Kt3	R/W FI	FL	4	Any floating point number	0.0	If the densitometer type is UGC (parameter #1 is set to 2):
							Constant Kt3 from the calibration certificate of the UGC densitometer. The program uses this constant in the temperature compensation calculation.
							Otherwise: Not used
29	Density Correction Factor	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Multiplier value to correct the observed density before it is stored to parameters #30, 31, and 32.
30	Observed Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	999.012	Observed density, in the units selected for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3)
31	Observed Relative Density	R/O	FL	4	>= 0.0	1.0	Observed density, in units of relative density.
32	Observed API Gravity	R/O	FL	4	0.0 to 100.0	10.0	Observed density, in units of API gravity.

Liquid Allocation Program for Continuous Flow User Manual

Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
33	Hydrometer Correction Option	R/W	UINT8	1	$0 \rightarrow 1$	0	Enable status for correction for a hydrometer when calculating the base density.
							0 = Disabled 1 = Enabled
34	Periodic Time	RO	FL	4	0.0	0.0	If the density interface type is a Micro Motion (or Solartron) or UGC densitometer (TLP=27,Logical,1 is 0 or 2):
							Period between cycles of the densitometer input, in microseconds.
							If the density interface type is an analog value (TLP=27,Logical,1 is 3): Not used.
35	Alarm Code	R/O	BIN	1	_	0x00	Alarm statuses:
							 Bit 7 – Manual mode status 0 = No inputs for the observed density calculation is a manual entry. 1 = At least one input for the observed density calculation is a manual entry.
							Bit 6 – Reserved
							Bit 5 – Reserved
							Bit 4 – Reserved
							 Bit 2 – High observed density alarm status: 0 = High observed density alarm status is clear. 1 = High observed density alarm status is set.
							Bit 1 – Reserved
							Bit 0 – Low observed density alarm status: 0 = Low observed density alarm status is clear. 1 = Low observed density alarm status is set.
Parm #	Name	Access	Data Type	Length	Range	Default	Description
-----------	--------------------------	--------	-----------	--------	--------	---------	--
36	Low Density Alarm Limit	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	300.0	Low observed density alarm limit, in the units specified for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3).
37	High Density Alarm Limit	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	1200.0	High observed density alarm limit, in the units specified for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3).
38	Alarm Deadband	R/W	FL	4	>= 0.0	5.0	The alarm deadband is the amount the observed density must be above the low alarm limit (parameter #36) or below the high alarm limit (parameter #37) before the associated alarm clears. The units are those specified for the observed density (TLP=22,0,3).

Point Type 26: Densitometer Parameters

For Customer Service and Technical Support Dial +1 800 537 9313

Headquarters:

Emerson Process Management Remote Automation Solutions 6005 Rogerdale Road Houston, TX 77072 U.S.A. T +1 281 879 2699 | F +1 281 988 4445 www.EmersonProcess.com/Remote

Europe:

Emerson Process Management Remote Automation Solutions Unit 8, Waterfront Business Park Dudley Road, Brierley Hill Dudley UK DY5 1LX T +44 1384 487200 | F +44 1384 487258

www.EmersonProcess.com/Remote North American/Latin America: Emerson Process Management

Remote Automation Solutions 6005 Rogerdale Road Houston TX USA 77072 T+1 281 879 2699 | F+1 281 988 4445 www.EmersonProcess.com/Remote

Middle East/Africa:

Emerson Process Management Remote Automation Solutions Emerson FZE P.O. Box 17033 Jebel Ali Free Zone – South 2 Dubai U.A.E. T +971 4 8118100 | F +971 4 8865465 www.EmersonProcess.com/Remote

Asia-Pacific:

Emerson Process Management

Remote Automation Solutions 1 Pandan Crescent Singapore 128461 T +65 6777 8211 | F +65 6777 0947 www.EmersonProcess.com/Remote $\ensuremath{\mathbb C}$ 2015 Remote Automation Solutions, a business unit of Emerson Process Management. All rights reserved.

Remote Automation Solutions, a business unit of Emerson Process Management, shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors in this manual or omissions from this manual. REMOTE AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO THIS MANUAL AND, IN NO EVENT SHALL REMOTE AUTOMATION SOLUTIONS BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF PRODUCTION, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF REVENUE OR USE AND COSTS INCLURED INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION FOR CAPITAL, FUEL AND POWER, AND CLAIMS OF THIRD PARTIES.

Emerson Process Management Ltd, Remote Automation Solutions (UK), is a wholly owned subsidiary of Emerson Electric Co. doing business as Remote Automation Solutions, a business unit of Emerson Process Management. FloBoss, ROCLINK, ControlWave, Helicoid, and OpenEnterprise are trademarks of Remote Automation Solutions. AMS, PlantWeb, and the PlantWeb logo are marks owned by one of the companies in the Emerson Process Management business unit of Emerson Electric Co. Emerson Process Management, Emerson and the Emerson logo are trademarks and service marks of the Emerson Electric Co. All other marks are property of their respective owners.

The contents of this publication are presented for informational purposes only. While every effort has been made to ensure informational accuracy, they are not to be construed as warranties or guarantees, express or implied, regarding the products or services described herein or their use or applicability. Remote Automation Solutions reserves the right to modify or improve the designs or specifications of such products at any time without notice. All sales are governed by Remote Automation Solutions' terms and conditions which are available upon request. Remote Automation Solutions does not assume responsibility for the selection, use or maintenance of any product. Responsibility for proper selection, use and maintenance of any Remote Automation Solutions solely with the purchaser and end-user.

